
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Karen Wall 

Monday, September 17, 2018 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
September 17, 2018, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. 
Main Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL:     Walter __, Woolridge__, Hawkins__, Guilin__, Anderson__,  
Wall____, Larsen___. 

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond
to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask
that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss
or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly
noticed for discussion and legal action.

6. PRESENTATIONS

a. Pinal County Strategic Transportation Safety Plan. (Dan Hughes)

b. Proclamation to participate in the Census 2020 Complete Count Committee and encourage
every person to be counted. (Jennifer Evans)

7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the
time the agenda item is called.

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



a. Appoint Andrew Simmonds to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a term to expire
December 31, 2021, to fill the vacancy left by Carl Bell; and to appoint Duane Proulx as an
alternate to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with a term to expire December 31, 2019.
(Lisa Garcia)

b. Approval of the August 6 and August 20, 2018 Town Council Meeting minutes.

c. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes:
i. July 31, 2018 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes
ii. August 2, 2018 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and Planning and Zoning

Commission Special Joint Work Session Meeting minutes
iii. June 21, and July 19, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting minutes

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Discussion and possible reaffirmation of Ordinance No. 270-99 and scheduling a joint work
session with the Caliente Board of Directors on date and location. (Mayor Walter)

9. NEW BUSINES

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of executing a purchase agreement with Greenstone
Water Credits, LLC, for Pinal Active Management Area extinguishment credits. (Brent
Billingsley)

b. Resolution No. 1679-18:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE
RESULTS OF THE PRIMARY ELECTION HELD ON AUGUST 28, 2018. (Lisa Garcia)

c. Resolution No. 1680-18:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 35A; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. (Larry Harmer)

d. Resolution No. 1681-18: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL
COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2018-2019
EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN.  (Scott Barber)

10. MANAGER’S REPORT

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC

12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY

13. ADJOURNMENT

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3). 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



POSTED ON SEPTEMBER 14, 2018, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
6a.  

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Pinal County Traffic Personnel 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject:  Pinal Co. Strategic Transportation Plan Meeting Date:  September 17, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:   Pinal County Strategic Transportation Safety Plan 
 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:   

This is an informational presentation requested by Councilmember Anderson to inform 
Council and our citizens of roadway issues and what is being done to address them.  

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:      

The Pinal County Strategic Transportation Safety Technical Advisory Council is made up 
of traffic engineers, law enforcement, Arizona Department of Transportation and others 
(Pinal County, AZ).   With 539 fatal crashes on roadways within Pinal County between 
2007 and 2016, the Sun Corridor Metropolitan Planning Organization, in cooperation with 
Central Arizona Governments, Maricopa Association of Governments, and Pinal County, 
is developing a comprehensive Strategic Transportation Safety Plan.  The safety study 
seeks input from community members about potential dangers on the road and areas of 
concern to help work toward the goal of zero fatalities. 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:     

Information only  

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:     

Information only 



Subject:  Pinal Co. Strategic Transportation Plan  Meeting Date:  September 17, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:     
 
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 



Pinal County
Strategic Transportation Safety Plan

Florence Town Council Meeting September 17, 2018



Safety Plan Objectives

Save lives and reduce serious injuries

►Identify emphasis areas, safety strategies, and 
safety projects

►4 E’s of safety:

►Engineering
►Enforcement
►Education
►Emergency services



Why the 4 E’s?

95% of crashes involve behavior factors 

Statewide Fatalities:

►50% not using seat belt, child safety seat, helmet

►38% involved speeding

►34% involved impaired driving



Crash Data Overview

Pinal County crashes for past 10 years (2007 – 2016):

►35,869 crashes

►539 fatal crashes

►1,543 serious injury crashes

►33,787 minor/no injury crashes



Crash Trends



Crash Data Analysis

Most frequent crash types:

►29% rear-end

►28% single vehicle

►12% angle

►9% sideswipe same direction

►8% left-turn



Crash Data Analysis

Most frequent fatal crash types:

►44% single vehicle

►13% pedestrian

►13% head-on

►9% angle

►7% rear-end



Crash Type by Severity

Collision Manner Fatal 
Incapacitating 

Injury

Non‐
Incapacitating 

Injury
Possible 

Injury
No 

Injury Total
Rear End 39 251 1061 1726 7281 10358
Single Vehicle 239 627 1566 1102 6585 10119
Angle 49 187 608 833 2768 4445
Sideswipe Same Direction 14 58 184 195 2848 3299
Left Turn 22 153 445 614 1797 3031
Other 21 59 150 167 1427 1824
Rear To Side 0 3 5 17 631 656
Sideswipe Opposite Direction 6 23 75 81 442 627
Head On 68 64 96 84 242 554
Bicycle 12 40 136 145 80 413
Pedestrian 69 76 125 72 52 394
Rear To Rear 0 2 16 15 116 149
Total 539 1543 4467 5051 24269 35869









Collision Manner
Fatal

Incapacitating 
Injury

Non 
Incapacitating 

Injury
Possible 

Injury No Injury Total
Ak-Chin Indian Community 6 3 13 6 41 69

Apache Junction 46 181 486 793 2869 4375

Arizona City 2 8 19 38 94 161

Casa Grande 64 198 914 1322 5927 8425

Coolidge 23 62 200 268 1203 1756

Eloy 23 51 170 156 863 1263

Florence 10 42 99 128 596 875

Gila River Indian Community 110 199 616 499 2783 4207

Kearny 1 1 5 4 19 30

Mammoth 0 4 0 3 11 18

Maricopa 24 50 236 293 1422 2025

Queen Creek 3 3 7 16 70 99

San Tan Valley 13 139 297 406 1887 2742

Superior 2 8 5 8 56 79

Tohono O’odham Nation 5 3 9 11 24 52

Unincorporated Pinal County 207 591 1391 1100 6404 9693

Total 539 1543 4467 5051 24269 35869

Crashes in Agency Boundaries



Town of Florence Crashes

Crash Type Fatal 
Incapacitating 
Injury

Non‐
Incapacitating 
Injury

Possible 
Injury

No 
Injury Total

Single Vehicle 1 21 33 37 71 263
Rear End 2 5 16 45 130 198
Angle 2 3 18 18 76 117
Left Turn 5 16 11 67 99
Sideswipe Same Direction 4 5 54 63
Other 3 2 1 46
Sideswipe Opposite Direction 1 2 3 5 19 30
Rear to Side 1 2 18 21
Head On 2 3 1 8 14
Pedestrian 1 2 2 1 1 7
Unknown 1 1 5 7
Rear to Rear 1 5 6
Bicyclist 1 2 1 4

Total 10 42 99 128 456 875



Online Mapping

gci.mysocialpinpoint.com/pinal-county#/

LOCATE YOUR CONCERNS



Next Steps

►Determine emphasis areas

►Develop safety strategies

►Conduct network screening to identify priority 
locations

►Identify and develop safety projects

Pinal County systemic rumble strip project includes 
Arizona Farms Road



Contacts

Kathy Borquez
Pinal County
(520) 866-6406
kathy.borquez@pinalcountyaz.gov

Jason Hafner
Sun Corridor Metropolitan Planning Organization
(520) 705-5153
jhafner@scmpo.org

Mike Blankenship, P.E.
Greenlight Traffic Engineering
(623) 308-6523
mikeb@greenlightte.com



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6b.  

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2018   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
Subject: Proclamation to Participate in the 2020 Census Complete                      Meeting Date: September 17, 2018   
             Count Committee      
Page 1 of 2 

STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst   
 
SUBJECT: Proclamation to participate in the 2020 Census 
Complete Count Committee and to encourage every person to 
be counted   

 Ordinance   
 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approve the proclamation to participate in the Census 2020 Complete Count Committee 
and encourage every person to be counted. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The U.S. Constitution requires a census of residents every 10 years.  Census data is 
used to determine how many representatives each state gets in Congress. A n accurate 
and complete count is important to the Town of Florence because it determines federal 
and state grant and aid funding levels, economic development, housing assistance, 
transportation projects, etc.  
 
The Complete Count Committee will be comprised of representatives from local 
businesses, government, civic groups, media, and residents.  The committee is charged 
with developing and implementing a 2020 Census outreach, promotion, recruitment, 
and enumeration assistance plan of action.  This plan is designed to target and address 
the needs of the Florence community.  The goals of the committee are to motivate the 
community to self-respond, educate the public about the importance of the Census, 
inform the community about Census activities and timelines; involve the community in 
activities, and increase the Census response rate.  
 
The initial meeting of the Florence Complete Count Committee is scheduled for 
Thursday, September 20, 2018, 4:00 pm at the Florence Community Center.  



Subject: Proclamation to Participate in the 2020 Census Complete                      Meeting Date: September 17, 2018   
             Count Committee      
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will not participate in the 2020 Census Complete Count 
Committee. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will participate in the 2020 Census Complete Count Committee. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The federal government uses population data to allocate funds for the following: 

 Title 1 grants to educational agencies (school districts) 
 Head Start Programs 
 Medicaid 
 Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 
 National School Lunch Program 
 Highway Planning and Construction 
 Public Transportation 

 
In addition, the amount of state shared revenues the Town receives is based on 
population.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Proclamation 
 



 

  

TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CENSUS 2020 COMPLETE COUNT COMMITTEE  
AND TO ENCOURAGE EVERY PERSON TO BE COUNTED 

 
 WHEREAS, the United States Constitution requires a Census of the population 
of our nation every ten years with Census information used to determine how many 
representatives the State of Arizona has in the United States House of 
Representatives and is also used to determine districts in our State legislature and 
local government bodies; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, individual Census records are confidential for 72 years, are 
protected under Title 13 of the United States Code and will not be shared with 
immigration or law enforcement agencies; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, having an accurate and complete Census count is important to the Town 
of Florence in determining Federal and State aid and grants, economic development, 
housing assistance, transportation improvements and many other uses; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence is concerned about historically 
undercounted populations including young children, young adults, elderly, 
immigrants, migrants, non-English speakers, and homeless; and recognizes that 
language, culture, trust and other social barriers have historically impeded some 
people from participating in the census; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Florence agrees that every resident deserves to be 
counted; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, an accurate Census count cannot be achieved without local 
involvement and support and Complete Count Committees are a core strategic 
element of the Census Bureau to promote the Census; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, Complete Count Committees exist to plan and implement locally-
based outreach campaigns that raise awareness of the Census and are comprised 
of trusted voices in the community.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and the Town Council 
of the Town of Florence, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Town Council recognizes the importance of the 2020 Census 
and hereby establishes the Town’s participation in the Florence Complete Count 
Committee. 
 



 SECTION 2. The Town Council further proclaims that every Florence resident 
counts and deserves to be counted. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE I, Tara Walter, Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, do 
hereby proclaim to participate in the Census 2020 Complete Count Committee and to 
encourage every person to be counted.  

 
Issued this 17th day of September 2018.  
       
  
            
       ________________________ 
       Tara Walter. Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
Subject:  Appointment to Planning and Zoning Commission  Meeting Date:  September 17, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/ 
                                      Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Planning and Zoning Commission Appointment

 Ordinance   
 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Appoint Andrew Simmonds to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a term to 
expire December 31, 2021, to fill the vacancy left by Carl Bell; and to appoint Duane 
Proulx as an alternate to the Planning and Zoning Commission, with a term to expire 
December 31, 2019.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Advertisements were placed on the Town website, social media, Channel 11, and in the 
Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board and commission seats.   
 
The Town received two applications and interviews were conducted with both 
applicants.  Though, both are qualified, it is staff’s recommendation to appoint Andrew 
Simmonds to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Bell and Duane Proulx as an Alternate. 
 
The Town has had ongoing advertising for the remaining vacancies on the Arts and 
Culture Commission (2 positions) and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (1 position) 
and will continue to collect applications until all vacancies are filled.   
 
The following is an excerpt for the Florence Town Code regarding Board and 
Commission: 
 

32.002 MEMBERSHIP. 



Subject:  Appointment to Planning and Zoning Commission  Meeting Date:  September 17, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

A. All boards, commissions and committees of the municipality shall have five 
members unless a motion, resolution or ordinance creating the board, 
commission or committee specifies a different number of members. 
 

B. Each board, commission or committee shall as nearly as possible have an 
integrated or balanced membership with representatives of each race, sex 
and geographical area of the municipality. 

 
C. The Council shall, in making the appointment, take into consideration each 

person's knowledge, background, interest, experience and availability to 
perform the work and duties of the board, commission or committee. The 
applicant's political affiliation shall also be considered in making the 
appointment. 

 
D. A member of any board, commission or committee may concurrently serve on 

any other board, commission or committee of the municipality provided that 
there is no conflict created by the concurrent service, or unless a motion, 
resolution or ordinance creating the board, commission or committee 
specifies otherwise. 

 
E. All members shall be bona fide residents of the municipality and a registered 

voter, if 18 years of age or older, unless a motion, resolution or ordinance 
creating a board, commission or committee specifies otherwise, and shall 
serve without pay or compensation, except that a member shall be 
reimbursed for his or her actual and necessary expenses incurred in the 
performance of his or her official duties, provided that the expenses are 
approved by the Council prior to being incurred. Town employees or 
appointed officers shall not be eligible for appointment to any board, 
commission and committee, but may be requested to provide staff support 
thereto. 

 
The liaisons have reviewed the applications and are forwarding the following 
recommendations to Council.  Recommendations are based on each applicant’s first 
choice and no member serving on more than one board at a time.   
 
Staff will advertise for remaining vacant seats as follows: 
 

 Arts and Culture Commission (2 positions) 

 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (1 opening) 

 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 



Subject:  Appointment to Planning and Zoning Commission  Meeting Date:  September 17, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

Not Applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications 
Boardmember List  
 





















MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY AUGUST 
6, 2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 
N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.      
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 1 of 19 

Present: Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, *Anderson, Wall, Larsen 
*Councilmember Anderson arrived at 6:03 pm 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on a text amendment to The Development 
Code of the Town of Florence amending the “Definitions” and “Part 9 Wireless 
Communications Facilities” Sections 150.031, and 150.180 to 150.184, and for first reading 
of Ordinance No. 662-18. 
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 662-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND USAGE” CHAPTER 
150 OF THE DEVELOPMENT CODE, EXISTING SECTIONS 150.031 “DEFINITIONS” AND 
“PART 9 WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES” SECTIONS 150.180 TO 150.184, 
(CASE PZ 18-21 ORD).  
 
Mr. Dana Burkhardt, UB Planning & Urban Design Contractor, stated that on February 1, 2018, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission took action to initiate text amendments to the Florence 
Town Code to implement the State mandated requirements for Small Wireless Facilities (SWFs) 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 2 of 19 

within Town rights-of-way.  Staff has consulted with stakeholders, the community at large, and 
researched best practices from other Arizona communities to develop a policy that will effectively 
address this mandate.  The result of this effort culminates in the proposed draft amendments to 
the Town Code, Development Code, and the “Small Wireless Facilities Terms and Conditions.”  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that this agenda item and report addresses proposed Ordinance Number 662-
18, a text amendment to The Development Code of the Town of Florence amending the 
“Definitions” and “Part 9 Wireless Communications Facilities” Sections 150.031, and 150.180 to 
150.184.   
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that Town staff is proposing minor modifications to the Florence Development 
Code to regulate wireless facilities and monopoles within the parameters of HB 2365.  Ordinance 
No. 662-18 would amend the Development Code provisions for wireless facilities to be 
compimentary to the proposed Town Code Business regulations of Ordinance 663-18.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that HB 2365 legislation explicitly allows by right, without a zoning approval 
process, wireless carriers and wireless infrastructure providers to access the public right-of-way 
to collocate new small cell wireless sites on city street light poles, utility poles and other structures, 
build new poles for small cells, and under certain conditions build monopoles and taller utility 
poles.  Among other things, this proposed amendment will streamline the permitting process to 
install small wireless facilities in the rights-of-way and classify such facilities as a permitted use 
exempt from zoning review or approval in accordance with HB 2365. 
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that Ordinance No. 662-18 amends the current Development Code provisions 
for wireless facilities to: 

 update the Development Code definitions related to wireless facilities. 
 clearly state the purpose and intent of Part 9 – Wireless Communications Facilities. 
 clarify the “Administrative Review and Approval” section to exempt small wireless facilities 

within Town rights of way from zoning review, and defer to the proposed Town Code 
Section 120 and the proposed Terms and Conditions. 

 enhance design review and aesthetic criteria by prohibiting outdated tower designs (lattice 
and guy-wire) and encourage monopoles, camouflage, and stealth tower design when 
collocations are not feasible. 

 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the Planning Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the 
Town Council: 
 

1. The proposed text amendment addresses the State mandated requirements, within the 
timeframe imposed. (Policy to be in place no later than three months from the time of 
receipt of a request to locate a small wireless facility within the Town right of way.  No such 
request has been received to date.)    

 
The proposed text amendment supports the following Strategic Plan Objectives:  

a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand information 
technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives and tasks as 
established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 3 of 19 

b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional and local 
government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and ever-evolving 
regulatory requirements. 

 
2. Subject to the health concern of wireless antennas expressed during public comment (see 

below), the statutes authorize cities and towns to only deny an application if the request 
does not meet applicable codes that concern public safety or reasonable stealth and 
concealment requirements. At this time, there is no conclusive evidence or studies linking 
cellular antenna operations to health problems. 

 
Mr. Burkhart stated that staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona 
Revised Statutes regarding public notification and public participation.  Public Notices for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council Public Hearings were advertised in the local 
paper, the Florence Reminder.  Meetings and public outreach for the proposed text amendment 
are as follows (* denotes tentatively scheduled): 
 

June 7, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission Work Session 
June 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission Review/Discussion 
July 12, 2018  Neighborhood Meeting (5-6PM Community Center) 
July 19, 2018  Planning and Zoning Commission (public hearing) 
August 6, 2018 Town Council (public hearing and 1st reading) 
*August 20, 2018 2nd Town Council reading (public hearing and action) 

 
July 19, 2018 Public Hearing Testimony: 
 
Elissa Moulton – Is on record requesting additional information of how cellular antennas work and 

the type of radio frequency they utilize. She also expressed concerns of health 
impacts from cellular antennas and equipment. 

 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission found that Ordinance 662-18 
complies with State mandate HB 2365 and is in the interest of general welfare, health and safety 
of the public.  The Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a unanimous favorable 
recommendation on this proposed text amendment, as described in Exhibit A, to the Mayor and 
Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Update all proposed text amendment references to “Development Services Department” 
and “Development Services Director” to reflect the titles and positions currently established 
in the Town of Florence Code of Ordinances. (Exhibit A includes these updates.) 

2. Correct typographical and scrivener’s errors as identified by Commissioner Frost during 
the discussion. (Exhibit A includes these updates.) 

3. Any additional modifications or changes deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 

Councilmember Wall inquired how power will be provided to the units and if the right-of-way will 
be disrupted.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that it is the provider’s responsibility to do things in accordance within the 
Town’s guidelines.  They also need to coordinate with the power utility to determine where the 
power will come from and how it will be metered.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 4 of 19 

 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that with the new law, the Town has lost some control 
as to who is located in the right-of-way and the requirements therein.  The new law takes away 
some of the Town’s ability to control that right-of-way.  All that the Town can do is require a right-
of-way permit to gain access.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired what would happen if the Town received multiple requests from 
different companies and can one pole have more than one small cell unit.   
 
Mr. Burkhart responded that one pole can have more than one small cell unit on it.  The intent is 
that multiple providers will want to come to the community.  Staff would look at the locations, and 
co-locations is preferred in some instances; however, it will be dependent on the pole itself.  He 
stated that they would not want to over burden one area or pole. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that design review would consider the wind and vertical loads.  He explained 
that a monopole will condense the location and reduce the amount of impact. 
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if there are any provisions for securing the ground equipment from 
vandalism.   
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that securing the equipment would be part of the design review process.   He 
stated that common practice is to place the equipment underground and have it locked in a vault.  
He stated that it is their responsibility to secure their equipment and there are guidelines pertaining 
to this.    
 
Councilmember Hawkins expressed his concern with the installation of small cell towers in the 
downtown area because the equipment would need to be underground; however, and the damage 
it can cause by tearing up the sidewalks and the damage that the vibrations can cause to the 
historical buildings. He stated there is no place for the boxes to be placed on Main Street.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the small cell towers is a demand issue and a provider selecting a pole 
on Main Street would be unlikely in the future.  He stated the Town Code has assurances to 
protect the buildings on Main Street. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated the wireless companies will want to avoid the Historic District for a variety of 
reasons, mainly because of federal laws pertaining to historic districts.  They would look for a 
place that is centrally located and will give them coverage that is not on Main Street because it 
would be a more difficult process to go through. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired what the capacity or coverage is for one of the units.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that it is intended to be very local.  They are normally located in an area that 
has a lot of data usage such as a stadium.   
 
Discussion occurred on various scenarios where providers would put in a small cell.  It is based 
on data usage, enhancement of the network based on demand, and where this is a disruption of 
service.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 5 of 19 

Mr. Billingsley stated that there is a two-phase approach to cell towers.  Eventually the large 
towers will be phased out.  The first city to go to 5G and only use small cell will be Houston, based 
on an article he read.  He stated, that ultimately, this is a change in technology, and the small 
towers will be replacing the large towers.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge inquired if a company requests a certain pole, is the Town able to offer a 
different pole.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the statute is specific on making it an administrative approval process, so 
the Town could have a conversation with the company regarding the poles.  
 
Councilmember Larsen is concerned about consumer protection and inquired if the Town has the 
legal ability to prevent the small towers from being in residential areas or high-density areas.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the Town would be overstepping their boundary and it would be a zoning 
issue.  The legislation was designed to negate that specifically.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town has wooden poles and they have been known to snap during 
the storms.  She inquired about usage of those poles.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the company has to show structural support and it would be the building 
and engineering’s responsibility to review the structural design and integrity of those existing 
poles.  Staff can test and inspect the poles before and after the proposal.  A third party may be 
required to certify that pole as well.  If the Town finds fault and is specific in the terms and 
conditions, it is the provider’s full responsibility to indemnify the Town from any accident or issue, 
inclusive of full repair and compensation to the Town for all the damages incurred.   
    
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no public comment, Mayor Walter closed 
the public hearing.  

 
Public hearing to receive citizen’s comments on a text amendment to the Florence Town 
Code of Ordinances to add Section 120 “Small Wireless Facilities” to Title XI Business 
Regulations and for first reading of Ordinance No. 663-18:  
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 663-18 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XI “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEW PROVISIONS REGARDING SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES 
AND RATES AND FEES FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND TOWN 
STRUCTURES, (CASE PZ 18-22 ORD). 
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that this ordinance will insert in the business regulations into the Town Code.  
He stated the Town did receive two comments: Tom and Elissa Moulton had concerns regarding 
installation of a small cell on the pole outside the front of the home and health concerns regarding 
what the small cell will radiate.  There concerns were addressed with them and the Planning and 
Zoning Commission.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 6 of 19 

Mr. Burkhart stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded a recommendation 
for approval with the following findings: 

 
1. The proposed text amendments and Terms and Conditions address the State mandated 

requirements, within the timeframe imposed (policy to be in place no later than three (3) 
months from the time of receipt of a request to locate a small wireless facility within the 
Town right of way. No such request has been received to date.)    

 
2. The proposed text amendments and Terms and Conditions support the following Strategic 

Plan Objectives:  
a. Transportation and Infrastructure: Maintain, enhance and expand information 

technology (IT) infrastructure to pursue the goals, objectives and tasks as 
established by Town Council and the Strategic plan. 

b. Leadership and Governance: Stay engaged with federal, state, regional and local 
government and regulatory agencies regarding existing and ever-evolving 
regulatory requirements. 

 
3. Subject to the health concern of wireless antennas expressed during public comment (see 

below), the statutes authorize cities and towns to only deny an application if the request 
does not meet applicable codes that concern public safety or reasonable stealth and 
concealment requirements. At this time, there is no conclusive evidence or studies linking 
cellular antenna operations to health problems. 

 
Mayor Walter asked Mr. Burkhart to recap what he shared with the couple who had health 
concerns and radiation regarding the small cell towers.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that there is no definitive evidence of wireless antennas causing any health 
impacts.  There is no documentation or study that exists that show health concerns and radiation 
issues; and for that reason, the State was very confident requiring that we have to put them in 
those places and that there be no zoning separations form people or structures.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the Town has an RF Frequency Spectrum that explains a simplistic term 
how radio frequencies work.  He explained how the frequencies work.  He stated that he is not 
aware of any communities that have denied any permits strictly on the reason of health concern.   

 
Councilmember Anderson thanked the Council for the work on this; it was a tedious process.  

 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no comments, Mayor Walter closed the 
public hearing. 
  
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Authorize the purchase of seven Panasonic Toughbook 33s Mobile Data Computers 

with keyboards and docking stations, from Mobile Concepts Technology, in an 
amount not to exceed $32,802.63. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 7 of 19 

b. Approval to purchase new cardio fitness equipment from FITLOGISTICS, through 
Mohave Cooperative (17H-FIT-0930), in an amount not to exceed $36,922.03.  
 

c. Approval of the 2018 Town of Florence Title VI Implementation Plan and Americans 
with Disabilities Act Transportation Policy. 
 

d. Proclamation declaring August 2018 as Child Support Awareness Month. 
 

e. Proclamation declaring August 2018 as Drowning Impact Awareness Month 
 

f. Approval of accepting the register of demands, ending April 30, 2018, in the amount 
of $3,905,277.74. 
 

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried (7-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the removal of Item f. 
 

f. Approval of accepting the register of demands, ending April 30, 2018, (June 30, 2018) 
in the amount of $3,905,277.74. 

 
Councilmember Wall stated that the Warrant Register’s period ending should be June 30, 2018, 
rather than April 30, 2018.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried (7-0) to 
approve the accepting the register of demands, ending April 30, 2018, in the amount of 
$3,905,277.74, correcting the ending date to June 30, 2018.   

 
NEW BUSINESS  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Community Development Block Grant Appeal 
initiated by Catherine Vargas.  

 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated the following: 
 
The Town adopted a Grievance Procedure in 2011.  There is a resident in Town that took 
advantage of that Grievance Procedure.  This evening, we have advertised for a hearing 
consistent with the Procedure, and as part of that hearing, we are going to have our Grants 
Coordinator present the factual background.  If our resident would like to speak during the hearing 
she is entitled to do that also.  So, that is kind of the procedure I suggest we take, and will allow 
Jennifer (Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst) to start out.  
 
Mr. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated the following: 
 
Good Evening, Madam Mayor, Vice-Mayor, and members of the Council, I just wanted to give a 
brief overview of our public participation process as it pertains to the Community Development 
Block Grant Program.  We follow the rules of the Arizona Department of Housing when it comes 
to allowing and encouraging public participation in how to use CDBG funds.  That process entails 
holding at least two public hearings, which we did in this most recent application process.  On 
May 24th, we had a public hearing, here in this room, and actually no one attended, but it was 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 8 of 19 

advertised in our local Florence Reminder newspaper as well as we posted notices in three 
different places to advertise the hearing.  Those locations are here at Town Hall, at the Police 
Station, and at Fire Station No. 2.  In addition to that, we typically have brochures for each public 
hearing that has the date, place, and the subject matter, which is the CDBG Application Process, 
included in that brochure.   
 
On the second hearing which was held on June 18th, it was a public hearing during a Town Council 
meeting, as you may remember, there was a hearing process where people could let the Council 
know their desire on how to use the CDBG funding.  Then the Council adopted a resolution to 
apply for a specific project.  During that meeting, the Council chose to use the CDBG funding 
allocation for public works water line improvement project.   
 
The second hearing was properly noticed in the newspaper as well as public notices being placed 
here at Town Hall, Police Station and Fire Station in addition to the brochure.  During that process, 
Ms. Vargas contacted me and indicated that she could not make it to the June 18th public hearing, 
so I mailed her a public input form that she could return.  That is another way that the public can 
give us their input on how to use those funds.  So that is kind of a brief overview of that process.  
We followed all of the rules and regulations from the Department of Housing and we have to 
document all of those hearings and that is submitted with the application.   
 
Now the CDBG Application for water line improvements was submitted last week on August 1st, 
which was the deadline.  I will be glad to answer any questions.  
 
Mayor Walter stated the following: 
 
Thank you, are there any members of Council who have any questions regarding Ms. Evan’s 
presentation?  
 
I do not have any questions either. 
 
At this time, I would like to call up Ms. Catherine Vargas, if you would like to speak.  
 
Ms. Cathy Vargas, Florence Resident, stated the following:  
 
Madam Mayor, Madam Vice-Mayor, and Town Councilmembers:  My name is Catherine Vargas, 
I go by Cathy Vargas, which is my maiden name.  My mother was born in Florence, her name 
was Celia Feliz, and is Vargas now.  She is from the Felix and Feliz families that still live in this 
Town.  I am a home owner of 27 years at the end of this month, and my house was built in 1959.  
I have two children, Perry Purden.  He has two daughters 21, and 10.  My daughter’s name is 
Amy Marie Garcia.  She lives here in Town, in Florence, and has two children, ages 5 and 2.   
 
I currently make an annual salary of $33,443.  There is an error on page, hopefully you got this 
packet, there is no page number.  It was the typed version of my complaint, my formal complaint 
and down at the bottom it says my income is, where it says SSP, that is SSD.  I am on Social 
Security Disability and on Arizona State Retirement.   
 
Approximately 13 years ago, I got sick.  I was diagnosed with a chronic illness called 
Hypogammaglobulinemia, which is a common (inaudible) immune deficiency disease and it 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 9 of 19 

affects your white blood cells, so my immunity is broken.  Therefore, I receive treatment, which is 
called an infusion, and I receive that in my home every three weeks.  My nurse comes to my 
house and give me my infusion, and it takes approximately five hours, and then my immunities 
are built back up for a while until they die again.  This is a chronic illness and I will have this illness 
for the rest of my life.  There is no cure, only treatment.   
 
With this illness, I also contracted a chronic asthma that happened at work when I got sick during 
the construction and my illness manifested into the chronic system that it is today.  So, my asthma 
is not like the normal person’s asthma.  My asthma is like the Boy in the Bubble disease because 
basically that is what my illness is under.  (Inaudible) Immune Deficiency Disease is under the 
umbrella of severe combined immune deficiency which is the Boy in the Bubble Disease.  So, he 
has no immunities, I have partial immunity; therefore, I receive my gamma globulin treatment 
fusion every three weeks to keep me healthy.   
 
Although, I am still prone to sickness and I could still die from a common cold.  I also have had 
two back fusion surgeries, my total right knee replacement, my neck was fused one year ago, and 
I have Fibromyalgia.   
 
I live at home alone.  My children are grown. I live there with my dogs.  Though my children grew 
up there, and we all graduated here from Florence High School.   
 
My application was submitted on June 22, 2014, that was over four years ago.  I don’t know if you 
were aware of that or brought to your attention when you made this decision.  At that time, Ernie 
Feliz, who is also my cousin, was the Grants Coordinator for the Town of Florence.  He put a nice 
article in the paper which mentioned what the CDBG Grant was and several people applied.  As 
you can see, all of the applications, on Page 2 on the Town of Florence Application Waiting List, 
there were eight people that applied and probably got the grant ahead of me.  But I do want to 
make note, that I was the fourth person on the waiting list, rather than all of those other people.   
 
I want to state, here on Page 7, let me double check, hopefully you have your packet.  I’m sorry, 
I’m a little nervous.  Let me go to the amount that I applied for was the low moderate benefit.  I 
met the income guidelines at that time.   
 
In this grant, it states that applicants will be received, it’s on Page 7 of the Housing Rehabilitation 
Program Guidelines, so on Page 7, it states on the top paragraph, applicants will be received and 
processed on a first come, first serve, basis.  I was the fourth person to apply four years ago, and 
my income at that time met the guidelines for the low and the moderate.   
 
Because of my illness, it is very important for me to get this grant.  It will help with the air quality 
in my home.  My heating has never been replaced.  My air conditioning is quite old, over 23 years 
old, and my roof has never been replaced.  I keep all of my medical supplies in my house so it is 
there for my nurse.  The only thing delivered to my house is my gamma globulin by Fed Ex and 
some of those things that have to be sent by the pharmacy and those are delivered a few days 
before my infusion.  So my nurse is going to come with her bag, and her company is called Briova, 
the nursing company, and she is going to come with her bag, and she sets up in my kitchen.  She 
hooks up my IV and then I go into my bedroom and lie there for about five hours, and she gives 
me vitals and everything in between.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 10 of 19 

Therefore, it will help with the air quality in my home.  It will help to keep it clean and safe and 
healthy so that my immune system is not compromised in any way.   
 
Now the letter dated July 13th, from Ms. Evans, states, “While your income is within the low-income 
limits, the Town used funding to complete housing rehab projects for residents within the close to 
very low 50% income limits”.  She is referring back to the original letter that she sent me November 
12th, which she inquired about as to why I didn’t qualify when I was told, I was, met under those 
guidelines.  
  
The letter of November 12, 2015 that she sent me stated: “It has been determined you are not 
eligible to participate in the Town of Florence Rehabilitation Program at this time.  This is because 
your income, your household income appears to exceed the amount under the funding available 
by the State Housing Fund Program”.  That is not true, because if you look at her letter that she 
sent me on July 13th she states right there: “While your income is within the low 80% income limit, 
the Town used funding to complete rehab projects for residents within the close low to very low 
80%”.   
 
I understand that people needed more help than I did because of their income. I understand that, 
that is perfectly understandable, but why would I have to wait four years?  I have been asking for 
help constantly.  Last year, I asked for help when I had a leak in the house and it created mold.  
Do you know what mold does to you?  Do you know that your insurance company won’t pay to 
have the mold removed?   
 
I contacted Ms. Evans and asked for help.  I asked for emergency help.  She said no funds were 
available.  I asked “Can you please take it to Town Council, let them know I have an emergency 
situation and need to get this mold removed?”  Her answer was “As you saw in my letter, there 
are no funds available, and if there were, I would know of them”.   
 
Therefore, I respectfully ask you to please take a look at all of this information and if there is 
another grant out there, as so she says, then why did she state in this letter “the application and 
income data to me” when I filed my complaint July 13, 2018, “the application and income 
information (inaudible) were submitted on June 27th of this year” when I filed my complaint “will 
not be accepted because the Town does not currently have active owner-occupied housing 
rehabilitation program”.   
 
I just would like to ask for you to please take a look into my, this matter, and let me know what 
you decide.  Thank you for giving me the time to bring this to your attention.   
 
Mayor Walter stated the following: 
 
Thank you, Ms. Vargas. Mr. Billingsley 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated: 
 
Yes Ma’am. 
 
Mayor Walter stated the following: 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 11 of 19 

I’m sorry, I thought you wanted to say something.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated: 
 
No, no. 
 
Mayor Walter stated the following: 
 
Ok, is there any member of Council who has anything to ask or clarify at this time.   
 
Councilmember Wall, stated the following: 
 
I would just like to say that personally I am not unsympathetic to the plea that Ms. Vargas has 
made.  We have to look back at the process through which we applied for the CDBG grant this 
year which is a totally separate undertaking from that which was applied for several years ago, 
and under which Ms. Vargas’ application was considered.  The Council did make a decision 
several meetings ago to apply for a different project than housing rehabilitation and it was felt that 
the was the best use of the funds in our current situation.  
 
Although I am not unsympathetic I feel that we do need to stay with the decision that Council 
made, and if it is appropriate, I don’t know that we need a motion but I would move to reinstate 
the decision that the Council made previously.   
 
Mayor Walter stated the following: 
 
Ok, is that your motion? 
 
Councilmember Wall stated the following: 
 
Yes.  
  
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried (7-0) to 
re-instate the decision that the Council made previously.  

 
Ordinance No. 664-18:  First reading: 
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 664-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE BY ADDING SECTION § 32.200 ET SEQ., 
ESTABLISHING A YOUTH COMMISSION IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE. 
 
Mr. John Nixon, Recreation Superintendent, stated that in 2017, the Town Council adopted a 
Strategic Plan that included the creation of a youth commission as an objective related to 
Community Vitality.  Staff has now drafted an application and bylaws for the proposed Florence 
Youth Commission for the Town Council’s consideration.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 12 of 19 

Mr. Nixon stated that this application and bylaws to create a Youth Commission would further the 
Town Council’s and Town Staff’s commitment to improve the quality of life for Florence teens by 
direct representation in issues which affect them.  Our current Florence Teen Council (FTC), 
created in July 2016, emphasizes the planning, coordination and implementation of teen programs 
and events.  While the FTC has occasionally expanded into areas of community service, its 
emphasis remains in programming and events.   
 
Mr. Nixon stated that the vision for the proposed Youth Commission shifts emphasis to 
involvement with town government operations and to serve as a direct voice to the Mayor and 
Council.  If Council approves the creation of the Youth Commission, we predict that both youth 
organizations will at times, work together in various capacities; however, the main emphasis for 
the Youth Commission, will be its dedication to representing the interests and desires of our local 
youth and recommending issues, concerns and policies to Town Staff and the Mayor and Council, 
 
Mr. Nixon stated that they took ideas from other Commissions who are doing very well for the 
bylaws and utilized information from Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, who has 
experience with other youth commissions in Fountain Hills.   
 
Mr. Nixon stated that he also has experience with Youth Commissions in Prescott Valley and 
Maricopa.  From his previous employment in the education field, he learned that teens want an 
outlet for their creativity, energy, ideas and voices.  He stated that the establishment of a youth 
commission would meet the Teen’s outlet and the desires from teens in the communities.   
 
Mr. Nixon stated that the Town has had a teen council for two years and they are doing well.  He 
stated that their emphasis is on establishing programs and events for the youth in the community.  
The Youth Commission will take a different direction and will be involved directly in the 
government.   They will be a voice and serve in an advisory capacity to the Mayor and Council for 
policies and procedures as well.  There will be opportunities for the Teen Council and the Teen 
Commission to work together on certain projects.   
 
Mr. Nixon stated that pending approval, staff will begin recruitment efforts immediately.  A 
committee consisting of Mr. Hughes, Ms. Alison Feliz, two members of the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board and himself to review the applications and make the recommendations to Council 
for consideration.  The Youth Commission will consist of five members and two alternates.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is supportive of the Youth Commission.  She inquired how did they 
come up with the 2.0 GPA.  She thought of some of the other programs and their requirements.  
She inquired if they are set on the 2.0 GPA. 
 
Mr. Nixon stated that they are not set on the 2.0 GPA and can be reconsidered.  He stated that 
the 2.0 GPA is the best guideline in making it available to as many deserving students as possible.  
He reviewed over 12 sets of guidelines from various communities and the average was 2.0.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the average GPA to enter into college is 3.0 and when you provide your 
youth the opportunity to serve on a commission, it gives them an edge competitively towards 
achieving those scholarships.  She asked that they consider bring the GPA up to 2.5. 
 
Mr. Nixon stated that they will consider modifying the GPA if it is Council’s direction.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 13 of 19 

 
Mayor Walter inquired if the same guidelines regarding terms and filling of positions will apply for 
the Youth Board as they do for the other Town boards and commissions.  
 
Mr. Nixon replied that it is his understanding that they will be treated the same.  He stated that is 
why they have two alternates appointed as well.  The first alternate would serve the remaining 
term should a commission member resign.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is in favor of the youth being engaged in the community and the 
government process.  She will support the 2.0 and 2.5 GPA.   She stated that the 2.5 GPA may 
inspire the students to do better.   
 
Mr. Nixon explained that students with the higher GPAs will be considered over those with a lower 
GPA. 
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that those with 2.0 GPAs are limited on what they can participate 
in should they desire to go to college.  She stated that it may provide an incentive for them to raise 
their GPA once they are enrolled in the program.  She stated that she is in favor of leaving the 
GPA at 2.0 as it will provide an opportunity for more students to be able to qualify for the program.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired how the meetings will be conducted and will the same rules as the 
Council, board and commission meetings apply, such as Roberts Rules of Order.  She inquired if 
Council or staff have any input on their meetings.  
 
Mr. Nixon stated the order of the meeting is outlined in Article III of the Youth Commission Guide.  
He stated that he will run the first meeting and the Commission will elect a Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Secretary.  The Chair will then run the meetings.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the Commission will provide reports to the Council, like the other 
boards and commissions.  
 
Mr. Nixon stated that the Commission can provide reports to the Council, should they so desire.  
 
Mayor Walter would like the Commission to meet in the Council Chambers.  She would also like 
to see the meetings televised.  
 
Mr. Nixon stated the Youth Commission Guidelines state that the meetings will be held at the 
Community Center; however, they can change the guidelines to reflect the Council Chambers as 
the meeting place.  
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she agrees with Councilmember Larsen with regarding to 
keeping the GPA at 2.0.  She stated that students who have creativity, diversity and personalities 
that support this kind of a commission should not be eliminated.  She believes everyone deserves 
a chance.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that there are some students who don’t inspire to go to college and 
agrees with the 2.0 GPA.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 14 of 19 

Mr. Billingsley stated the Youth Commission will be the same as all other boards and 
commissions.  Certain items will be added to their agendas from staff’s perspective, such as the 
General Plan.  He stated that they will generate minutes and will be provided to Council for 
approval.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that not all boards and commissions are filmed and recorded and there is a 
commitment from the Council to pay staff overtime.  It will require two staff members for each 
meeting, so this is a consideration.  
 
Mayor Walter asked if the local high school students could help with some of those duties.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she served on a similar board when she was in high school 
and their Youth Commission oversaw the teen council.  She suggested that this may be an option 
for the Town’s Youth Commission.   
 
Resolution No. 1675-18: First reading 
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1675-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES IN TOWN RIGHTS OF WAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the terms and conditions are that the Town is the lightning rod for the 
Town’s stakeholders.  The Town follows the best practices from the metropolitan area.  Arizona 
is one of the first states to employ such a statute.  The terms and conditions are solid, and the 
stakeholders’ responses confirm that.  This set of terms and conditions will go along with all of the 
licenses that come before the Town as well as the permits.  It provides the foundation and 
guidelines of how the Town interacts and issues permits and approves wireless facilities and 
oversee their operation.   
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that there are standards for installation, operation, and maintenance of small 
wireless facilities in the rights-of-way.  It also addresses operation interferences and emergency 
disruptions.  It also outlines the safety program and indemnifies the Town.   
 
Mr. Burkhart stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission forwarded a favorable 
recommendation to approve with the amendments that are included.     
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to approve an addendum to the Solid Waste Services 
Agreement with Right Away Disposal, to add three Community Clean-Up Days and have 
the Town pay for residents to use the Right Away Disposal Transfer Station, located at 
3755 South Royal Palm Road, Apache Junction.  
 
Mr. Benjamin Bitter, Assistant Town Manager, stated that staff was directed to issue a Request 
for Proposal (RFP) for Landfill or Transfer Station Services.  Staff has issued out the RFP and 
expects to receive responses by August 17, 2018.  Staff anticipates having a recommendation to 
Council at the September 4, 2018 Town Council meeting.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 15 of 19 

Mr. Bitter stated that staff also received direction at thae Council meeting to provide some sort of 
interim solution.  Due to the large storm that hit, and the extensive damage to the trees and debris 
left behind, the Town worked with Right Away Disposal (RAD) to have two 40-yard roll offs 
delivered to the Town, so the residents would have someplace to dispose of their debris.  The roll 
outs were placed at the Community Center and both bins were filled.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that the Town has provided an addendum to the existing RAD contract, such as 
a task order for Council’s consideration.  The task order would add three community clean up 
days, which would allow for quarterly clean up days.  The Town would also advertise the quarterly 
dump days that Pinal County offers.  By doing so, there are dump days available every six weeks.  
The Town would also pay for residents to utilize the RAD transfer station in Apache Junction, 
Arizona.   Staff does not anticipate that the cost will increase.  There has also been a decrease in 
price compared to what the Town was previously paying at the other transfer station.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that each additional dump day could cost the Town approximately 
$3,000; however, in the task order, the cost is estimated at $4.080. She inquired if one of the 
options is removed to account for the decrease in cost.  
 
Mr. Bitter stated that the hazardous waste adds a large cost; however, residents are not able to 
dispose of hazardous waste when the Town had the contract with the previous transfer station.  
The Town would not be able to offer free hazardous waste disposals four times per year due to 
the cost and the equipment needed to accept the hazardous waste.     
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (7-0) to 
approve an addendum to the Solid Waste Services Agreement with Right Away Disposal, to add 
three Community Clean-Up Days and have the Town pay for residents to use the Right Away 
Disposal Transfer Station, located at 3755 South Royal Palm Road, Apache Junction. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Land Use Approval Process Agreement by and 
between the Town of Florence, a municipal corporation, and Pulte Home Company L.L.C., 
a Michigan limited liability company.  
 
Mr. Billingsley introduced Mr. Randy Crispen, Pulte, who is present at the meeting.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff has been working on this agreement for two years.  He stated that 
the Town entered into two separate development agreements, in 2003 and 2005.  One of the 
agreements pertained to Anthem, as a whole, and the other pertained only to Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch, specifically Pulte.  He stated that there are several years remaining on the agreement and 
there have been many issues between both parties that needed further clarification.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Land Use Approval Process Agreement is not an amendment to 
either of the Development Agreements, but merely a clarification of the expectations between the 
two parties and how we do business together.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that modifications to the agreement were made this morning (August 6, 
2018) and the final version of the agreement has been provided to Council on the dais.  He 
outlined the redlines, which include: 
-  Page 1:  date changed from July to August 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 16 of 19 

- Page 1:  header was changed 
- Page 5: corrected two dates which stated 2035.  The actual expiration of the agreement is 

2038. 
- Page 6 Section C:  The word “date” was added after the word “effective”. 
- Page 6 Section D Payment: The words “anniversary of the effective date in 2022” were added 

with respect to payment of the Development Impact Fee after 2023. 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that the word “if” needs to be inserted in Benchmark 3A prior to the 
words “3,045 residential units have not received final approval”.  She also inquired what the 
difference is between 3A and 3B.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that final version includes the correction with the word “if” added.  He stated 
that the existing agreement had some requirements which were necessary by 2018.  One of the 
requirements had to do with a certain amount of units that needed to be platted by December 
2018 and the other had to do with units that had to be built by 2018.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that with the downturn in the housing market, and one of the main things 
that Pulte desired as part of this agreement, was that the Town take a serious look at what has 
actually transpired in the partnership as it relates to those deadlines.  As part of that negotiation, 
Pulte stated that there are two CFDs which are slightly different products and there are slightly 
different desires for how we will go forward from now to build out.  The intent is to extend that date 
to a reasonable time period based on the absorption that is occurring in Anthem and the difference 
between the two CFDs.        
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) to 
approve a Land Use Approval Process Agreement by and between the Town of Florence, a 
municipal corporation, and Pulte Home Company L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability company. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley welcomed back Fire Chief David Strayer, who was at the Executive Analysis 
Community Risk Reduction Training at the National Emergency Training Center in Maryland.  He 
has created a report similar to a Master Thesis on Community Risk Reduction within the Historic 
District and fires.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has a new Kubota Tractor. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Florence was voted as the Safety City in Arizona again.  Florence moved 
from No. 1 to No. 3 last year and we are back at No. 1 this year.  The length of research that is 
done is impressive.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Police Department was awarded $13,490 from Arizona Department 
of Homeland Security.  The money will be used to purchase radios.  He thanked Lt. Terry Tryon 
for his work on obtaining this grant.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated a new law went into effect his week regarding development plans.  The 
Town’s Redevelopment Plan was approved in 2009 and the new law states that the Plan must be 
re-approved every 10 years or it will be deemed invalid.  There are other things as to what the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 17 of 19 

plan can include, must include, cannot include, and the size of area that it can encompass.  
Funding has been budgeted in this fiscal year and next fiscal year to update the General Plan.  
Staff has received two grants to complete the necessary studies for the General Plan Update, so 
there is funding available.  Staff has been directed to create an RFP to update of the 
Redevelopment Plan.  There will be an opportunity for public input, so they can satisfy the State 
Statute.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there will be a public meeting on Wednesday, August 8, 2018 at 12:00 
pm, at the Community Center and a public hearing will follow that evening at 5:30 pm, also at the 
Community Center with respect to the Aquifer Protection Permit relating to the Johnson Utilities 
Section II Wastewater Treatment Plant.   
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Services 
Courts 
Development Services 
Finance 
Police 
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired of Mayor Walter what does the denial of the Regional 
Transportation Authority (RTA) mean.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that it pertains to the one-half cent sales tax that the voters in the most recent 
election approved a plan and the funding mechanism.  There were some challenges with the 
Goldwater Institute regarding the legality of the monies to be dealt with in that way.  The RTA sent 
out an email that it was not, and there may be an appeal on a much higher level.    
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the owner is restoring the building on 11th Street and Bailey.  
They are doing a very nice job.  She wished that other properties owners followed suit.   
 
Councilmember Wall congratulated Tracie Wilgus on receiving the Permit Tech of the Year Award, 
from the Arizona Building Official’s Association.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she provided Mr. Billingsley an article from the National League 
of Cities and Towns regarding the development of downtown areas.  She asked that the article 
be distributed to the rest of the Council.  The article discussed a survey of mayors and 
councilmembers throughout the United States, the number one trend of concern is economic 
development of downtown areas.    It gives good suggestions on how economic development 
might take place in a downtown area.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 18 of 19 

Councilmember Larsen stated that school is in session and to please be mindful of children and 
pedestrians, specifically in the crosswalks.  
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that with the start of the school year, the Florence Teen Council is 
now in full swing and they are having meetings every Tuesday and workshops every Thursday.     
   
Mayor Walter congratulated Chief Strayer on his completion of such a rigorous program.  He has 
brought a lot of value back to the community, especially with regards to the fire alarms in the 
downtown area and raising awareness in the community. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Development Department had an intern who sent her a letter in which 
he communicated his appreciation for what he has learned in your department.  He stated that 
the knowledge that Mr. Chris Salas, Development Services Director, and Mr. Larry Harmer, 
Planning Manager provided to him was very valuable as he is studying to be an engineer.     
  
Mayor Walter thanked Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, and Mr. John Nixon, 
Recreation Superintendent, for their letter of support for an application for the Diamondback’s 
Grant for the Little League.   
 
Mayor Walter thanked Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, for her work with regards to 
grants, specifically CDBG.  She understands Ms. Vargas’ concerns and knows that you will keep 
Ms. Vargas abreast of any funding opportunities that may arise.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is proud of the creation of the Youth Commission.  She stated the 
youth are the future and she is happy that they will be involved in the process.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that there will not be an Executive Session as Mr. Billingsley informed her 
that there is no longer a need to have an Executive Session.   
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
Possible contract negotiations related to the proposed Project Radius development 
project. 
 
There was no Executive Session.   
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
There was no Executive Session.  
 
 ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:53 p.m.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 6, 2018 
Page 19 of 19 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on August 6, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, AUGUST 
20, 2018, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 
N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 1 of 23 

 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen. 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised 
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council 
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the 
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Tom Rankin, Florence Resident, stated that he made a mistake at the last meeting when he 
said the Town could put up a temporary transfer station on Willow Street.  He told the Council that 
the residents would be dumping in the desert; however, they are dumping on private property.  
This is problematic for the property owner because the Town cannot go onto the private property 
to do clean up.   
 
Mr. Rankin stated that Florence residents will not drive to Apache Junction to haul their debris to 
the transfer station.  He has yard clippings and will not haul them to Apache Junction but will wait 
until it is cooler to obtain a burn permit and burn his clippings.  He asked Council to correct their 
mistake of following staff’s recommendation in voting in favor of utilizing the transfer station in 
Apache Junction.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that the issue is already being corrected.     
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 2 of 23 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Presentation by Margaret Boone, P.E., Maricopa Association of Governments Project 
Manager, on the Florence K-8, and Anthem K-8, Safe Routes to Schools Studies.  

 
Margaret Boone, P.E., ITS and Safety Engineer, Maricopa Association of Governments provided 
a presentation, in which she outlined the following: 

 
- Florence Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Studies 

 Background and MAG SRTS Program 
 Is an important initiative to improve safety for vulnerable users  
 Includes three key initiatives 

o Annual hosting of crossing guard training held at multiple locations 
o Programming and transportation alternative federal aid funding  

o  MAG allocation that it receives on an annual basis.  It was through this funding 
that the Town was able to conduct the studies.  

o Administration of the Safe Routes to Schools Studies 
o Advancing regional goals to improve safety for K-8 children walking and biking 

to and from school  
o Addresses strategy that is identified in the 2015 MAG Strategic Transportation 

Safety Plan 
- What a SRTS Study is not 

 Not a requirement for funding of the improvements or programs recommended in the study 
 Not a mandate to implement any of the recommendations 
 Does not work against the goals of the local agencies 
 This is key in partnerships with schools and the school district in developing meaningful, 

reasonable, and effective solutions to address issues unique to the school.    
 Not counter meaningful; reasonable and effective solutions to address issues unique to 

each school and community. 
- What a SRTS Study is  

 Proactive approach to improving safety to school children  
 Tool for prioritizing planning improvements, programs and projects  
 Used to leverage for local or federal aid funding for the improvements 
 Framework sustaining SRTS activities in the future 
 Educate and encourage staff and community and foster safety for children walking and 

biking to school 
- Background 

 MAG Strategic Transportation Safety Plan identified strategy – Promote SRTS Studies 
- MAG Administration 

 Prior to 2018, Arizona Department of Transportation administered SRTS  
 Lengthy process to develop formal agreement 
 Local agencies had to provide a cash local match and had to be budgeted for prior to 

submitting application 
 Required 5.7% Local funds match 
 Required programming of project amount  
 Local agency required to procure their own consulting services 

o Very lengthy process 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 3 of 23 

 Now 
 MAG administers process 
 NO JPA or other agreement which provides for an expedited process 
 In-kind services in lieu of local funds match 
 MAG qualifies consultants on an on-call list with very specific requirements towards 

completing the tasks within the scope 
- SRTS Study Scope of Work 

 Traffic Data Collection, Field Observations, Inventories 
 Compile existing procedures, policies, plans, etc. 
 Assessment of pedestrian and bicycle amenities and facilities 
 Surveys are distributed to students and parents in order to gauge attitudes to barriers to 

walking and biking to school 
 Study is implemented by the Town, the school and the District 
 Involve school and District stakeholders from the very early stages  
 Develop recommendations and tools for the success of the project  

- SRTS Study Deliverables 
 Evaluation tools for tracking, celebrating, planning for successes, memo describing the 

findings, inventories and walking and biking facilities assessments 
 Existing conditions and barriers 
 Final Report 
 Action Plan 
 Walking and biking route maps 

- SRTS Study Outcomes 
 Action Plan Items 
 Education 
 Encouragement 
 Enforcement 
 Engineering 

 Has been used in coordination with schools and districts to plan and prioritize how the 
action plan will be addressed in a timeframe that suits them best.  

- Key Strategies 
 Enforcement 
 Driving behaviors greatly impacted if there are consequences  
 Governor’s Office of Highway Safety has funding that tcan provide for enforcement 

efforts 
 Florence K-8 Observations 
 Observed children having to cross State Route 79 at Main Street or Butte Avenue which 

resulted in a recommendation to coordinate with Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT) to evaluate insulation of potential raised medians and rapid flashing beacons  
o Typically, crosswalk sign that is accompanied by flashing lights and strobe back and 

forth to alert drivers that there is a pedestrian in the crosswalk. 
o Activated by the pedestrian 
o Another measure it the High Intensity Activated Crosswalk (HIAC) 
o Signalized pedestrian crossing that actually stop traffic 
 ADOT would be the lead for this type of project 
 Potential procurement of some of the equipment can be funded through another 

MAG Transportation Alternatives Grant 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 4 of 23 

o Common recommendation for both schools 
 Strategy to encourage more K-8 children to walk and bike to school  
 Initiate a “walk school bus” or “bike train” 
 Parent(s) could take turns to walk/bike train the group of children to school  

 Anthem K-8 Observations 
 Only one crossing guard at American Way and at Anthem Way 

o “U” configuration – may be better to have two crossing guards 
o  
 An option is to move the crosswalk to the east side of the road 
 In the interim, it would be safer to provide two crossing guards.  
 Task would be to coordinate with Town staff the feasibility of relocating the 

American Way crosswalk  
o Enforcement  
 Vehicles are passing school buses as they are dropping off/picking up children 

at the bus stop 
 Task would be to partner with the Police Department to provide periodic 

enforcement at the bus stop 
o Engineering 
 Paint markings are faded (lane lines and striping)  
 Task would be to refresh pavement markings on a regular cycle. 

 
Ms. Boone stated that they will use some of the feedback received from this cycle to enhance 
their future studies.  She provided the contact information:  http://srts.azmag.gov  or at 
www.azmag.gov/Programs/Transportation/Road-Safety-and-Technology 
 
Mayor Walter asked for the contact information to be placed on the Town’s website.  She inquired 
if the traffic light by the American Leadership Academy School can be turned into a HAIC light.  
 
Ms. Boone stated that there are students who walk from the Anthem community to American 
Leadership Academy and parents have expressed concern regarding their students crossing at 
that light.  She stated that the light can be enhanced by adding a pedestrian count down along 
with a crossing guard.  Signal timing could also be modified to ensure they are adding sufficient 
time.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired who would pay for the crossing guard.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that the school would be responsible for providing the crossing guard.   
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that the Town will look at a pedestrian signal warrant 
at that location.  As it stands now, there is not a pedestrian phase at that signal nor is there any 
striping for a crosswalk.  The Town will also reach out to the school to see if they would be willing 
to provide a crossing guard at that location.   
 
Councilmember Larsen had requested that the American Leadership Academy be included in the 
study; however, they were not able to be included in this round but will be in the next round. 
 
Councilmember Anderson asked that staff look at the timing of the light. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 5 of 23 

Active Transportation Plan Presentation 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that the Town received a grant from MAG 
for a first time Bicycle and Pedestrian Masterplan.  They will be looking at bike lanes, pedestrian 
sidewalks and the connectivity between areas.  The Town was able to obtain a grant for 
approximately $95,000, with a 20% match by the Town.  This plan goes hand-in-hand with the 
Safe Routes to Schools Studies.  This plan will also be a component of the General Plan that will 
be updated next year as well as the Comprehensive Plan that will soon be started. 
 
Mr. Hughes stated that MAG has on-call consultants and the Town took advantage of the on-call 
consultants and obtained Michael Baker International for the Plan which is the same consultants 
who worked on the Town’s Transportation Plan.     
 
Mr. Kevin Kugler, AICP, Director of Planning, Michael Baker International, provided a presentation 
in which he outlined the following:   
 
- Award of Grant 

 Town had to compete for the grant; it was not an automatic award of funding 
- Project Introduction 

 Purpose and Need 
 The Town of Florence competed for and was awarded grant funding from the 

Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) to assist in the preparation of this Active 
Transportation Plan (ATP).  

 The Town of Florence has never had a bicycle and pedestrian master plan. 
 How will the Active Transportation Plan help the Town of Florence 
 This ATP will develop policies and procedures necessary to create a system for 

bicycle and pedestrian traffic in an integrated, safe and efficient multi-modal 
transportation system for Florence.  

 Policies will be supported by maps and other graphics to identify and promote 
enhanced mobility and connection in Town – including the locations of bicycle and 
pedestrian paths/trails to connect neighborhoods and other key locations in the 
community such as Heritage Park, Community Center, Aquatic Center, other 
activity/job centers. 

 Establish a formal inventory of existing bike and pedestrian facilities and identify 
critical gaps in the system.  

 Conduct a survey of Florence residents on their walking and biking attitudes and 
behaviors to better understand community expectations on these issues.  

 Identify safety concerns and recommend design solutions.  
 Obtain community input to help evaluate and prioritize short, medium and long-term 

improvements.  
- Project Work Plan and Schedule Snapshot 

 Phase I - Project Initiation – near completion 
 Prepare Scope of Work 
 Public Involvement Plan 
 Data Collection 
 Technical Advisory Commission (TAC) Meeting #1 
 Parks Board/ Planning Commission Briefing #1 on August 2, 2018 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 6 of 23 

 Town Council - Briefing #1 – August 20, 2018 
 Phase II – Existing and Future Conditions Analysis - August 2018 – October 2018 
 Analyze Existing Plans and Studies 
 Bike and Pedestrian Counts 
 Gap Analysis 
 Bike and Pedestrian Behaviors Survey 
 Technical Memorandum #1 
 TAC Meeting #2 

 Phase III - Evaluation Criteria and Plan of Improvements 
 Technical Memo #2 
 TAC Meeting #3 
 Parks Board/ Planning Commission Briefing #2 
 Town Council - Briefing # 2 
 Public Open House #1 

 Phase IV – Draft and Final Active Transportation Plan (ATP) 
 Draft ATP 
 Public Open House #2 
 Final ATP 

- Key Project Issues, Concerns and Objectives 
 Town Council observations 
 Issues, concerns and objectives 

o Regional connections needed 
o Existing neighborhood connections 
o CAP canal trail 
o Public engagement 
o Existing/planned parks and open space connections 
o Bike/pedestrian count locations 
o Public safety 
o Transit stop connections 
o Activity center connections 
o ADA accessibility 

- Next Steps 
 Continue data collection process 
 Field Investigations/Bike and Ped Counts 
 Prepare Technical Memorandum #1 

 
Councilmember Anderson stated that the bike riders are riding at 5:00 am. 
 
Mr. Kugler stated that the counts will be done via video cameras on a 24-hour basis.     

 
Recognition of Noah Rudko, Development Services Intern.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that Noah Rudko came to the Development Services Department as an intern 
after completing his 3rd year at Arizona State University, where he has a focus on civil engineering. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that Mr. Rudko was assigned numerous tasks within the department 
throughout the summer.  He has provided invaluable assistance to the Planning Division.  Working 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 7 of 23 

directly with the Planning Manager, Mr. Rudko successfully created a comprehensive system for 
searching project files and maps dating back 20 years.  While doing so, he uncovered Town street 
and improvements maps dating back to the 1930’s. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that while working on this task, Mr. Rudko took advantage of the opportunity 
to spend time with each of the Development Services Public Works Divisions to better understand 
the workings of municipal operations and to expose him to various aspects of Civil Engineering. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that once he completed with his initial assigned task, Mr. Rudko was able to 
work with GIS and be exposed to the engineering benefits that GIS has to offer and, at the same 
time, provide valuable assistance to the GIS Coordinator in digitizing engineering data that will 
assist Public Works in the execution of their duties. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that Mr. Rudko proved himself to be a valuable asset to the Town throughout 
his tenure and staff greatly appreciated his willingness to tackle any project assigned to him.  We 
are certain his future endeavors will be equally fruitful. 
 
Mr. Larry Harmer, Planning Manager, stated that they discovered many old documents, including 
blue prints, which will lend itself to demonstrating the transition that the Town has had over the 
years.  They also cataloged the filing system, so it is uniform.     
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Development Services Director, thanked Mr. Rudko for all this assistance.  He 
stated that he did a lot of field work.  Mr. Rudko reached out for the Town to do an EIT Program 
(Engineer in Training Program).  He stated that the EIT Program is something that Florence is 
interested in having for young professional engineers.  Mr. Rudko plans on returning to Florence 
during his school breaks.   
 
Mayor Walter asked what an EIT Program is. 
 
Mr. Salas explained what the EIT Program is and what it entails.   
 
Mr. Rudko stated that he enjoyed his time in Florence and learned a lot from Mr. Harmer and Mr. 
Salas.  He hopes to continue to work with the Town and make a career in engineering.  

 
Recognition of Matthew Fredette, Economic Development Intern.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that Mr. Matt Fredette provided valuable assistance in Administration during 
his three-month tenure with the Town.  Mr. Fredette was responsible for updating tour operator 
itineraries, media contact lists, and the downtown walking tour brochure.  He developed two new 
30-minute walking tours of downtown to give visitors more options to explore the historic district. 
His work in this area enhances the visitor experience in Florence. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that Mr. Fredette assisted staff with compiling data for the Town’s economic 
profile.  The project included updating information for the MAG employer database and group 
quarters lists, obtaining current unemployment rate information and labor force information for 
Florence.  He also expanded the commercial property inventory that improves efficiency in 
responding to information requests related to economic development.  Mr. Fredette‘s contributions 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 8 of 23 

in this area enable staff to provide up to date and relevant information for business attraction and 
expansion activities.  
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated it was a pleasure to have Mr. Fredette work with 
the Town.  She stated that there were times that the work Mr. Fredette had to do was not very 
glamorous; however, he was able to gain an understanding of the basics.  She hopes he has 
some takeaways from working with the Town that will serve him well in the future.  She wished 
him well on his future endeavors and stated that he will be missed.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it was a pleasure to have Mr. Fredette work for the Town.  He stated 
that Mr. Fredette is in his last year in college.  He interned last year at the Chamber of Commerce 
in Eloy, Arizona.  Mr. Fredette may want to work in the public sector once he completes his 
schooling.  He thanked Mr. Fredette for serving Florence.  
 
Mr. Matthew Fredette thanked the Town for the opportunity to work for Florence and for everyone 
who assisted him.   
 
Bruce Long, representing Five-Parks, presenting concerns on the Fire Code portion of the 
International Building Codes. 

 
Mr. Bruce Long, Florence Resident, stated that the community of Caliente Casa De Sol 
respectfully requests that the Town of Florence allow the replacement of existing park models 
with new units utilizing the same footprint of the unit being removed.  
 
Mr. Long stated that the International Building Code Section 102.6 under Existing Structures 
states: The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of adoption of this Code shall be 
permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically covered in this code, the 
International Property Maintenance Code or the International Fire Code, or as is deemed 
necessary by the building official for the general safety and welfare of the occupants and the 
public. 
 
Caliente Casa de Sol, with its 856 properties, has been in existence for over 40 years.  During 
this time, the resort has had one major fire.  This was due to a malfunctioning propane heater in 
a unit that was built in the late sixties or early seventies.  This incidence destroyed the housing 
unit but the unit on its left side had minimal damage.  
 
Mr. Long stated that the Town is allowing continued use of our nonconforming lots, but denying 
the replacement of aging units utilizing the existing footprint because it is inconsistent with the 
intent and fabric of the IBC And IRC Codes.  
 
Mr. Long stated that the Planning and Zoning Department stated that they can repair aging units 
as long as they are not substantially remodeled, but not replace them utilizing the original footprint.  
 
Mr. Long stated that as units age through maintenance and deterioration that have increased risk 
of fire and general safety issues.  They also become a liability to their neighboring units as well 
as the community in general.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 9 of 23 

Mr. Long stated that the National Fire Protection Agency data indicates that manufactured homes 
including parks models built to HUD standards (post 1976 construction) have a much lower risk 
of death if fire occurs compared to pre-standard manufactured homes.  The latest data also shows 
that the overall fire death rate per 100,000 housing units is roughly the same for manufactured 
homes versus stick-built one and two-family homes.  
 
Mr. Long stated that their park is over 85% occupied with fixed unit structures, such as RV’s and 
Park Models.  The Town of Florence adopted the IBC Codes in October 2007 but did not start to 
enforce its Codes until 2017.  
 
Mr. Long stated that if they are forced to comply with the directives of the Planning Department 
this will cause major disruption to their park.  Accessory buildings will have to be demolished, as 
the setback will change from one foot on the right side of the property to five feet, necessitating 
any structure that was attached to an existing park model to be moved to the left.  Most of the 
accessory buildings cannot be moved as they are on foundations.  Even if they could be moved, 
they would protrude into the prescribed setbacks on the left side.   
 
Mr. Long stated that the property values have already dropped, prospective purchasers have 
backed away from agreements, and in general, the total Caliente community is in disarray since 
November 2017, when they were advised of the new codes.  
 
Mr. Long stated that the Town of Florence allowed and approved the placement and replacement 
of units with the park for 10 years after it adopted the International Building Code of 2007 and 
allowed replacement units to occupy the exact footrprint of the units being removed.  Now they 
state that they violate the Code.  He inquired why the Town waited 10 years to apply this code. 
 
Mr. Long referenced an ordinance that was adopted in 2008 and was enacted one year after the 
IBC was adopted and provides protection against this type of action.  The Town clearly did this to 
protect Caliente from becoming an RV Resort that was headed for demise.   
 
Mr. Long stated that the population of Caliente ranges between 1,300 senior citizens in the winter 
to approximately 120 during the summer.  About 15% of the population is dependent on Social 
Security as their only income.  Their hope is that the Council will use prudent judgement in allowing 
existing park models to be replaced utilizing the footprint of the old unit utilizing code complaint 
models with the up-to-date and current National Fire Code ratings.  These units are several times 
safer than the existing models regarding fire safety as well as personnel safety. 
 
Mr. Long stated that they wish to work with the Town of Florence and will modify their setbacks 
rules in their Declaration of Restrictions to read that newly placed units that are placed on vacant 
property and replacement units that are capable will be placed at the back edge of the curb line.  
This will move the units 22” forward towards the street and vacate the same distance along the 
rear right-of-way.  This will facilitate easier access for the Town’s staff who are working on water 
mains and connections.  
 
Mr. Long stated that there are several concerns regarding how they have been dealt with, 
specifically by the Development Services Department.  He stated that one resident encountered 
many obstacles in trying to put up an Arizona Room, and finally gave up due to the stress and 
harassment he felt he was getting from Planning and Zoning.  He stated that they also had issues 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 10 of 23 

when they were replacing the roof on the Clubhouse.  He stated that the roofer had never 
experienced so many issues in his 40 plus years of doing business.  
 
Mr. Long explained of another situation in which a resident needed to replace the railing at their 
home.  Both the resident and his son (who are both 55+ years) have fallen and it is imperative 
that this be fixed because it is a dangerous situation.  They went to the Planning and Zoning 
Department to inquire about putting another railing on their steps.  He stated that the railing has 
not been fixed because of things they were asked to provide to the Planning and Zoning 
Department.   
 
Mr. Long stated that Caliente and the other parks have tried their best to work with Planning and 
Zoning.  He stated that Planning and Zoning has gone to the parks to discuss this and were told 
that they have the best attorney in the state and he has never lost a case.  He said this is what 
they are dealing with.   
 
Mayor Walter asked for a presentation at the next Council meeting pertaining to these issue.  
 
Strategic Plan Update  

 
Mr. Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, provided a presentation, in which he outlined the 
following: 

  
- Town Council priorities 

 Community Vitality  
 Encourage resilience, adaptation and innovation in connecting the multi-dimensional 

nature of community life. 
 In last six months, social media presence (# of followers) has increased by 19% 

(Facebook, Twitter, Instagram). 
 Parks, Trails, Open Space Master Plan process underway. 
 Events have grown: 4th of July, Christmas on Main, Halloween, Movies at the Pool, 

Historic Florence Home Tour, etc. 
 RFP for Redevelopment Plan under development 

 Economic Prosperity 
 Build and diversify a local economy that is robust and resilient. 
 Funding has been allocated this year to create a non-profit economic development 

agency. 
 New medical offices in Florence (Horizon Health and Sun Life). 
 New Circle K and renovated McDonald’s and Burger King. 
 Development Agreements for old Circle K buildings allowed for tank removal, preparing 

for lease. 
 Relationship with Innovation Pavilion has brought partners like Airebeam, Milandr, and 

Subex (with whom the Town is working on cybersecurity). 
 Leadership and Governance 
 Provide effective leadership and oversight by engaging younger residents and 

transparent governance. 
 Town Council decreased property tax rate by 2.5% town wide, and 10.6% in the CFDs. 
 Town Council recently approved the creation of the Florence Youth Commission. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 11 of 23 

 Transparency enhanced through the Town of Florence Public Records Portal, hosted 
on website. 

 Ensured reliability of water/sewer for Anthem residents, by actively participating in 
Johnson Utilities cases at Arizona Corporation Commission. 

 Partnerships and Relationships  
 Lead the community in developing and nurturing partnerships in the region. 
 Staff remains actively involved in regional groups like: 

MAG, CAG, AZ League of Cities and Towns, Pinal  Partnership, Pinal Regional 
Transit Authority (PRTA), Rotary,  National League of Cities, and various 
professional  organizations. 

 Town was chosen to host ADOT State Transportation Board Meeting in September 
2018. 

 Staff has begun working with partners on Census 2020 preparations. 
 Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Build and maintain physical connectivity throughout the community to reinforce 

Community Vitality and Economic Prosperity. 
 The Town completed over $2.7 million of infrastructure repairs and/or improvements in 

the last fiscal year. 
 The Town has maintained its water and sewer systems to the highest standards, with 

no violations. 
 Active Transportation Plan under development. 
 Regional Transportation Plan nearing completion. 
 Safe Routes to Schools study has been completed. 

 
Councilmember Wall acknowledged the improved relationship with the Economic Development 
section of Pinal County.  The video and brochure that they released showcases Florence.  She 
stated that this is a major partnership that the Town is developing with Pinal County.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town has been working very hard on economic development as well 
as the overall Strategic Plan.  She hopes the public sees the progress the Town is making within 
the community and how the Town is continuing to grow and implement new things into the 
community.   
 
Mayor Walter invited the public to follow the Town on the various social media sites.   
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 
Acceptance of the Florence K-8, and Anthem K-8, Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) Studies. 
 
Approval of a contract with Rottweiler Controls, LLC, to provide SCADA repairs and 
maintenance through the Cooperative Contract #31700019, with the City of Buckeye, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $50,000.   
 
Approval of the purchase of Insta-Valve 250 Patriot insertion valves through Hydra-Stop, 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 12 of 23 

Approval to contract with Pro-Tec Environmental Inc., to provide sewer line cleaning 
through June 30, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $100,000.  
 
Approval of the July 3, July 16, July 18, July 20, and July 30, 2018 Town Council Meeting 
minutes. 
 
Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
- April 25, 2018 Historic District Advisory Commission Minutes 
- May 3, 2018 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Minutes  
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried (7-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1675-18:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1675-18 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES IN TOWN RIGHTS OF WAY TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  
 
Mr. Larry Harmer, Planning Manager, stated that Resolution No. 1675-18, Ordinance No. 662-18 
and Ordinance No. 663-18 are inter-related.  He stated that the resolution is the terms and 
conditions for the small cell wireless.  Ordinance No. 662-18 is Title 15 – Land Usage Chapter of 
the Development Code, Chapter 150, which references definitions and Part 9, the wireless 
communication facilities.  Ordinance No. 663-18 is Title 11 – Business Regulations for rates and 
fees with use of the public right-of-way and Town structures. 
 
Mr. Harmer stated that public meetings and public hearings have been held at the Planning Zoning 
Commission and Town Council previous meetings.  The first reading was conducted by the Town 
Council on August 6, 2018.  If adopted, it will go into effect in 30 days.  Staff is not aware of any 
providers preparing to submit an application at this time.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried (7-0) 
to adopt Resolution No. 1675-18. 

 
Ordinance No. 662-18:   

 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 662-18 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND USAGE” CHAPTER 
150 OF THE DEVELOPMENT CODE, EXISTING SECTIONS 150.031 “DEFINITIONS” AND 
“PART 9 WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES” SECTIONS 150.180 TO 150.184, 
(CASE PZ 18-21 ORD).  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 13 of 23 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Guilin to adopt Ordinance 
No. 662-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 
 
Ordinance No. 663-18:  

 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 663-18 by title only.  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XI “BUSINESS REGULATIONS”, 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEW PROVISIONS REGARDING SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES 
AND RATES AND FEES FOR USE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND TOWN 
STRUCTURES, (CASE PZ 18-22 ORD).  

 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
adopt Ordinance No. 663-18. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
  
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 
 
Ordinance No. 664-18:   
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 664-18 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 32 OF THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE BY ADDING SECTION § 32.200 ET SEQ., 
ESTABLISHING A YOUTH COMMISSION IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 14 of 23 

Mr. John Nixon, Recreation Superintendent, stated that they have promoted the Youth 
Commission in several ways including: 
- Article in the local newspaper 
- Weekly news releases to run through the deadline, on the Town’s website, 
- Sent notice to all Town subscribers 
- Goals and applications were sent to the high school counselors and social studies teachers for 

dissemination.   
 
Mr. Nixon thanked Mr. Jeremy Scott, Florence Unified School District Counselor, for emailing the 
application to all of the high school students as well.  He also met with the student council members 
at Florence High School and passed out all 28 applications that he had with him.   
 
Mr. Nixon stated that the indication is that there is interest in serving on the Youth Commission.  
They will have a committee review of the applications after the August 31, 2018 deadline.  Staff 
will make the recommendation to Council at a later date.   
 
Mayor Walter asked that the application be added to the Town’s website.  She stated that the 
participation in the Florence’s Teen Council has nearly doubled.  There is a large interest in the 
youth participating in the community and in their local government.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to adopt Ordinance 
No. 664-18.  
 
Roll Call Vote: 
  
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Larsen:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion passed:  Yes: 7; No: 0 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1662-18:   

 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1662-18 by title only.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING 
THE SALE OF THE REMAINING PLOTS OF BLOCK 29 OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
CEMETERY TO THE TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 544-96, 
AND ESTABLISHING FUTURE RATES FOR CEMETERY SERVICES AT THE THEN 
PREVAILING RATE.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 15 of 23 

Mr. Benjamin Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, stated that the Tohono O’Odham Nation 
(Nation) wants to acquire the remaining lots in Block 29 of the Town of Florence Cemetery, which 
the Town had agreed to provide to them though Resolution No. 544-96.  As part of the agreement, 
the Town would provide the remaining lots in Block 29 to the Nation and this would be done 
through a sale of the remaining lots.  This resolution would authorize the sale of the remaining lots 
as well as rescind Resolution No. 544-96 because the Town would have fulfilled the terms outlined 
and completes the Town’s obligation under that resolution.  This would help to not confuse future 
members of the Town or the Nation.   Any other future purchase of plots will be at the current 
rates.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that the Town has had a good partnership with the Nation and thanked Vice-
Mayor Woolridge for her work with the Nation.    
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that she is happy that the Nation approached the Town and they 
were able to work together to grant them their request to have their own section.  It simplifies the 
process as well.  She thanked Mr. Curtis Williams, Code Enforcement Officer for his assistance in 
assuring that they had all of the history and paperwork for that section of the cemetery.        
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (7-0) to adopt 
Resolution No. 1662-18. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Cactus Transportation, dba: 
Cactus Asphalt, using the Cooperative Contract, through Pinal County JOC Contract 
#173923 Asphalt Maintenance and Repair Services, which includes the application of Chip 
Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber and FOG Seal Binder for pavement 
preservation treatment, in an amount not to exceed $364,018.24 (Proposal $316,537.60 
with a 15% contingency, $47,480.64.)  
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Development Services Director, stated that they have gone out for four straight 
cycles, or three straight years, for the polymer modified asphalt rubber chip seals projects.  They 
are using a Cooperative Contract with Pinal County.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired why the JOC Contract Number is listed as 173923 in one section 
and 175923 in another.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that it may have been a scriber’s error.  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the way the contracts with cooperative language work is that entities 
like Pinal County utilize this type of contract for millions of dollars of work.  They would do a 
solicitation for a number of products and they would get a response.  They would utilize this for a 
period of time and would then have an option to “re-up”, which is an abbreviated process to re-up 
the contract to extend its life and time if they are able to hold the rates the same.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it may have not been a scriber’s error.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that the correct number is 175923.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 16 of 23 

On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (7-0) to enter 
into a contract with Cactus Transportation, dba: Cactus Asphalt, using the Cooperative Contract, 
through Pinal County JOC Contract #175923 Asphalt Maintenance and Repair Services, which 
includes the application of Chip Seal Binder: Polymer Modified Asphalt Rubber and FOG Seal 
Binder for pavement preservation treatment, in an amount not to exceed $364,018.24 (Proposal 
$316,537.60 with a 15% contingency, $47,480.64.) 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the 2018 American Medical Response (AMR) Non-
Exclusive Revocable License Agreement for temporary housing at Florence Fire Station 
542.  
 
Mr. David Strayer, Fire Chief, stated that the local hospital closed abruptly, approximately six to 
eight weeks ago, which put the Town in a bind for their emergency services.  American Medical 
Response (AMR) was housed at the hospital along with LifeNet.  Both entities reached out to the 
Fire Department for help.  The Fire Department did its best to accommodate them because they 
work closely with them, and more importantly, wanted to maintain the service delivery to the 
community.  The agreement is temporary as they would like to continue to house AMR on a 
temporary basis.  AMR pays the Town $1,423.82 per month.   
 
Chief Strayer stated, that because they do not know when the hospital will reopen, the contract is 
good for up to one year and has the option to be revoked any time before that.  He stated that 
AMR has been in the station for approximately six to eight weeks and they have not encountered 
any problems nor have not been any negative occurrences that have occurred with this 
arrangement.  There have been a couple of note-worthy calls where they feel the service delivery 
has improved.  Staff is recommending that it be approved on a temporary basis until a permanent 
solution can be found.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he noticed one of the fire trucks is parked outside of Station 
No. 2 and inquired why.  
 
Chief Strayer stated that from a safety perspective, two of the major causes of accidents in the 
fire services are intersections and backing in.  He stated that they try not to back up their 
apparatus.  In order to do that, they moved their spare unit outside on a temporary basis so the 
ambulance can drive through like the other units.  This was done as a safety precaution.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if they have a better place to store it.  He is concerned about 
sun damage to the vehicle.    
 
Chief Strayer stated that they can look for an alternative place to store the vehicle.   
 
Mayor Walter outlined her concerns with regards to the agreement with AMR: 
- Vehicles being left outside and the possibility of sun damage 

 Resident communicated with her their concerns as well 
 More than enough room to house the ambulance, Police, and Fire Unit inside 

- Rent  
 Availability of commercial space for rent 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 17 of 23 

 Fire Station 542 is being paid for with CFD funding and inquired if the rent collected is being 
applied to the debt 
 Did staff research the CFD issue to determine if the money had to be used to pay off 

debt 
o If money is not used to pay off debt, where will money be applied 

 Amount that the Town is receiving from AMR is minimal in comparison to revenue they 
bring in  

 Was a rent comparison study done to determine what other ambulance companies pay 
- Amount of people per ambulance 

 Should there only be two people per ambulance 
 What are the consequences for more than two people per ambulance 

- Certificate of Necessity 
 Would like the Town to operate their own ambulatory services 
 Was CON considered when negotiating this agreement 
 Has the Town considered acquiring part of the CON 

- Building Security 
 Would like key pad system installed at AMRs expense 
 Doors being left open 
 No control of who is coming and going 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he does not recall a conversation pertaining the vehicles left outside 
ever being brought up and that it is an interesting thing to look at.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that the rate is the exact same rate that Gilbert and Queen Creek receive.  
Housing ambulances in fire stations is a common practice in Arizona.  The range for rent is $1,200 
to $1,600, and the Town received $1,423 which is consistent with the range of what is being paid.  
 
Mayor Walter inquired if Queen Creek offers its own ambulance service.  
 
Chief Strayer responded that they do not offer their own ambulance service.  They have the 
Certificate of Necessity (CON), but they do not operate their own ambulance.  AMR is their 
ambulance provider.  
 
Chief Strayer stated that there was no discussion pertaining to the CON with regards to this 
contract.  He stated that there were discussions in the prior agreement.  This agreement is for a 
stop gap due to the circumstances to address a short-term problem.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that when you have a CON you have a duty to provide those services to the 
residents and to station employees in the area to provide appropriate response times.  
 
Chief Strayer reiterated that the contract is for a stop gap temporary measure and is not connected 
to any long-term negotiations.  He stated that CONs are very involved and take a lot of time, 
energy, effort and money.  This is for a short-term temporary agreement.  He does not know how 
he would connect the CON to this agreement.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that there are two people per ambulance. There was an instance when there 
was a ride along that did show up one evening and that problem has been corrected.  He stated 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 18 of 23 

that it was a misunderstanding with AMR and it will not happen again.  He stated that there are 
clauses in the contract pertaining to this.   
 
Mayor Walter asked Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, to review the contract to see if it specifies 
the repercussions if there are more than two per ambulance.  
 
Chief Strayer stated that doors are not being left open.  There is one primary unit that is assigned.  
There were operational issues that need to be worked out, as with any new program.  He stated 
that there were some circumstances that occurred when it was first implemented when they were 
having move up units coming in.  He stated that this has been corrected plus there is a cutoff time 
with no changes after 10:00 pm.  He stated that things are going well.  
 
Mayor Walter inquired if there is a keypad system that can track who is coming and going. 
 
Chief Strayer stated that they spoke with IT; however, the arrangement is temporary and they did 
not want to spend the money on this.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that now that they are considering a one-year contract, would it be feasible 
for them to be responsible to put in a keypad system to serve that purpose.   
 
Chief Strayer responded that installing a keypad could be a consideration.  
 
Chief Strayer stated there is a captain at the station who is in charge of the station and is 
responsible for what takes place there.  If the captain encounters issues, they have a chain of 
command who reports to the Battalion Chief of Operations who reports to him (Chief Strayer).  He 
stated that there is a process for any kind of personnel issues.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if he has had any issues reported to him at all, small or large.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that they had the issue of the third person one time, and the rotation of the 
units; both of which have been corrected.  He stated that nothing further has been communicated 
to him. If there is anything that occurs, it will be addressed.  
 
Mayor Walter inquired about the coverage regarding an Advanced Life Support (ALS) and Basic 
Life Support (BLS).  She stated that she did not notice that in the contract.  
 
Chief Strayer stated that they have the option of doing that, per the contract, a certain number of 
times per month. 
 
Mayor Walter inquired how many times.  
 
Chief Strayer stated two times per month.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired about maintenance and upkeep.  She stated that they are going to use the 
facilities, and it is all encompassing.  She stated that as a Town, we are responsible for the wear 
and tear.  She inquired if additional monies are going to be set aside in the budget to cover the 
additional wear and tear of items.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 19 of 23 

Chief Strayer stated that the $1,423 that the Town receives monthly should cover the cost.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired if money will go towards purchasing supplies for cleaning, etc.  
 
Chief Strayer stated that any expenses incurred will come from that money.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that she feels they are missing some of the information in the way that it was 
presented.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff did research the rental cost and the rate is within the range and is 
consistent with neighboring communities.  Staff received very clear direction from Council which 
was to move forward immediately with an interim agreement.  Staff worked on this and discussed 
not working on any long-term agreement until the timing was right.  He stated that Mayor Walter 
brought up the CON discussion as part of that more long-term agreement if we ended up in that 
fashion.  Staff was following Council’s direction to move forward with this item.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated with respect to two people per ambulance, that is included in Section 3.3.1.  
He stated that it is very clear in the contract that they must correct the issue.  He stated it is his 
understanding that the issues were handled appropriately.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that in terms of security and a keypad, that is something else that has been 
discussed with the IT Department. He stated that none of the issues have come to his attention 
as a potential issue.  He stated that the arrangement is working very well.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he has never had it communicated to him by anyone regarding the 
parking of the fire truck outside.  He stated that this is a completely new issue and he had never 
heard of it before this evening.  He stated that there is the other building that is adjacent and there 
is no reason why the vehicle cannot be put in that building.   
 
Mr. Billingsley commended Chief Strayer, Mr. Mattice, and AMR for the turnaround time on 
finalizing the agreement.  Thy dropped a number of things that they were working on to negotiate 
the agreement and get this contract done as soon as possible.  He thanked them for their hard 
work.  Staff is also working on the other agreement and are trying to accelerate it as much as 
possible.   
 
Mr. Billingsley apologized if he missed Council’s direction on how to deal with this item; however, 
to him, it was very clear on how staff was to move forward.  
 
Mayor Walter apologized if he did not get her message; however, she shared the concern with 
Councilmember Anderson Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is not pleased that she does not have an answer yet regarding the 
CFD and how that money is going to be handled.  She stated that she expects an answer this 
week.   
 
Mr. Mattice stated that he intentionally prepared the document as a license to avoid any 
repercussions with the GIBLET under the State Statute.  He stated that he is not a bond counsel 
and will speak with Mr. Mike Caffiso.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 20 of 23 

Mayor Walter asked if this is something that the Town would want to confirm before they approve 
the contract, rather than find out later that they will have to pay a GIBLET which was not included 
in the original contract.    
 
Mr. Mattice stated that the GIBLET is not the Town’s call.  This would be a determination from the 
State, and the County Treasurer.  It is written in the leases and the licenses that AMR, a licensee, 
or tenant, is responsible for if the taxing authority decides it must be paid. 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that Mr. Mattice can check with Mr. Caffiso; however, the land was 
donated to the Town to build that station.  She inquired if that building would be treated similar to 
all of the other Town buildings.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that the building is being paid for by the bond for that area; which is where 
the issue is at.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that this is a technicality; however, the direction provided by Council 
was to ensure that Florence’s residents were going to have the emergency services that they are 
accustomed to.  Staff can check the technicalities.  She stated that the direction from Council is 
accurate in that they wanted to make sure that those services stayed in the community for our 
residents.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that she would like to see the community operate their own ambulance, which 
is why she is asking for part of the CON.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that operating your own ambulance is not a money maker.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that she has substantial concerns especially when it comes to safety and 
access to the building.  She stated that Chief Strayer mentioned that a lot of accidents occur 
backing up and at intersections.  She stated that the intersection was approved by Council many 
years ago, and there was supposed to be a turn lane going into the station; to this day, they still 
do not have it.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that the project is in the works.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried (7-0) to 
approve the 2018 American Medical Response (AMR) Non-Exclusive Revocable License 
Agreement for temporary housing at Florence Fire Station 542. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

There was no Manager’s Report.  

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 21 of 23 

Councilmember Guilin stated a lot of the issues that were brought up about the Fire Station.  
Those issues are operational issues that she feels that Chief Strayer is very competent and 
capable of handling them.  The issues are not things that the Council should be getting involved 
in.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he agrees with Councilmember Guilin.  It was day-to-day 
decisions that were being discussed and he doesn’t understand what it had to do with the 
ambulance service.  If the Town wants to get into the ambulance service, it is something that 
needs to be discussed at another time.  The issue being discussed is trying to retain the current 
ambulance service.   
 
Councilmember Wall thanked Chief Strayer for diligently putting the package together and for 
working to create a cooperative atmosphere at the fire station.  It is very important for the residents 
in the area to have that assurance that they will have rapid response in case of an emergency.  
She hopes that the Town will have a cooperative arrangement between the AMR and the Fire 
Department.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she agrees with the comments made by the Council. 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that she also agrees with the comments made by the Council. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that she loves that the Town has great responses to the community; however, 
she feels that regardless if the Town lets AMR rent at the station or not, it is their duty to provide 
our citizens with that appropriate response time according to the requirements set forth.  She 
stated that she is all about partnering with organizations and public/private partnerships, but she 
looks at this situation and inquires what are they bringing to the table.  She stated that they have 
a duty to provide that anyhow through the CON.  She inquired what is the Town benefiting from 
having them at the station.  She stated that she sees some positive, and she sees a lot of 
negatives.  She stated that if they can get her concerns under control regarding security and some 
procedural items, then absolutely.  She hopes that they have some honest communication 
regarding any feedback. She stated that Council always finds themselves receiving positive 
feedback and there are a lot of positive things that happen, but there is nothing worse than when 
things do not go according to plan, and we find out after the fact that there were issues, then 
Council wonders why they did not know.  She is asking for open and honest communication that 
is consistently brought forth.                 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the holding of an Executive Session during 
the Council Meeting for the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated 
representatives of the public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-
431.03 (A)(1), (A)(3), (A)(4) and (A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its 
representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
 Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding the Petition for Review of 

Underground Injection Control Permit, issued by USEPA Region 9, for the Florence 
Copper Project, UIC Appeal 17-03, and related proceedings, including Ninth Circuit 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 22 of 23 

appeals of the 1997 Aquifer Exemption (Case No. 17-73170), and the decision of the 
Environmental Appeals Board (Case No. 17-73168). 

 Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 
16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts. 

 Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa 
County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015 -000325. 

 Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter 
of the Commission’s Investigation into the Billing Practices and Water Quality Issues 
of Johnson Utilities, LLC before the Arizona Corporation Commission (WS-02987A-18-
0050). 

 Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence Intervention in the Matter 
of the Commission’s Investigation into the rate case of Johnson Utilities, LLC before 
the Arizona Corporation Commission (WS02987A-17-0392). 

 Discussion or consultation regarding Southeast Valley Regional Cooperative 
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Management, Operations and Planning for 
Effluent, Water and Wastewater Treatment Services in the Region between the Town of 
Florence and the Town of Queen Creek.  

 Possible discussions and contract negotiations with Artisan Acres for the proposed 
development agreement. 

 Duties as assigned to the Town Manager. 
 Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence use of International 

Technical Codes including Fire Codes and Town Codes. 

On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Mayor Walter, and carried to adjourn to 
Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 
 
 ADJOURNMENT    
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (7-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 10:24 p.m.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2018 
Page 23 of 23 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on August 20, 2018, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

 









































 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9a. 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Brent Billingsley, Town Manager 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject:  Greenstone Water Credits, LLC                                                 Meeting Date: September 17, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

 
SUBJECT:   Purchase Agreement with Greenstone 
Water Credits, LLC. 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality    Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to execute a purchase agreement with Greenstone Water Credits, LLC, 
for Pinal Active Management Area extinguishment credits. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Town of Florence has an Assured Water Supply Designation (AWS), more 
commonly known as a Decision and Order (D&O), by Arizona Department of 
Water Resources (ADWR).  For the Town to obtain and maintain this 
designation, it must demonstrate, among other requirements, that it’s water 
supplies will be physically, legally, and continually available for 100 years.  For 
approximately one-year staff has been working toward modifying our designation 
to acknowledge an increase of water supply that could result from the acquisition 
of water supplies within the Pinal Active Management Area (AMA) and from 
groundwater recharge. 
 
The Town currently utilizes a relationship with the Central Arizona Ground Water 
Replenishment District (CAGRD) to assure a 100-year water supply.  CAGRD 
provides the opportunity for water providers to obtain paper water access to 
renewable resources without having to construct the infrastructure necessary to 
physically convey those resources to new developments.  In effect, the water 
provider need only install a local groundwater system to supply the wet-water 
needs of the development.  The CAGRD is not mandated to hydrologically 
balance local ground-water withdrawals with aquifer replenishment.  Instead, the 
CAGRD relies on paper-water accounting that allows ground-water pumping in 
one area of an AMA to be offset by the recharge of Colorado River water in 



 
 

Subject:  Greenstone Water Credits, LLC                                                 Meeting Date: September 17, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

another area of the same AMA.  Growth which solely depends on the CAGRD to 
obtain an AWS designation would result in a paper-water balance of ground 
water withdrawals with ground water replenishment.  Utilizing the CAGRD in this 
fashion is not consistent with the Town’s interests because reliance on paper-
water accounting would circumvent the hydrologic-based principle of aquifer 
stewardship.  
 
Under the Assured Water Supply (AWS) Program, designated water providers 
are granted a volume of allowable ground water withdrawals without incurring a 
replenishment obligation (ground water allowance).  This volume was considered 
a phase-in allowance to assist water providers in shifting from reliance on mined 
ground water to renewable supplies.  Allowable ground water can also be 
credited over time.  An annual incidental recharge credit is accrued based on 4% 
of the total potable and reclaimed water produced in the previous calendar year. 
 
Long-term storage credits are accrued when renewable water supplies are 
recharged to the aquifer for recovery in a subsequent year. 
 
The owner of an irrigation grandfathered groundwater right has the option of 
permanently retiring his farmland, in full or in part at a time of his own choosing 
and depending on a date specified in the Assured Water Supply Rules, can 
create a groundwater credit that can be used by the developer to allow an orderly 
transition over time to non-groundwater supplies.  Groundwater credits, also 
known as extinguishment credits, may be sold to another party and transferred to 
be used anywhere within the same Active Management Area, provided those 
credits have not already been pledged toward an Assured Water Supply 
certificate or designation and that the applicant has demonstrated that the water 
will be physically available for 100 years at the location of withdrawal. 
 
If approved, this Purchase Agreement would facilitate purchase of 
Extinguishment Credits utilizing net proceeds of Town income from the Tonopah 
Irrigation and Drainage District/CAGRD Long Term Storage Credit Agreements.  
The negotiated price of these Extinguishment Credits a fraction of the current 
2018/2019 CAGRD Total Assessment Rate of $694 per acre foot and less than 
half of the 2018 Central Arizona Project (CAP) “Excess Water” value of $205 per 
acre foot.  Purchased credits can be used to offset potential CAGRD charges. 
 
There are very few options out there to purchase “paper water” in the Pinal 
Active Management Area.  That said, staff reached out to other entities including 
Central Arizona Project and Salt River Project regarding purchase opportunities. 
Greenstone provided the best combination of volume, price, and flexibility. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town would not enter into a Purchase Agreement with Greenstone Water 
Credits, LLC. 

 



 
 

Subject:  Greenstone Water Credits, LLC                                                 Meeting Date: September 17, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Town would ratify a Purchase Agreement with Greenstone Water Credits, 
LLC, that would facilitate purchase of Extinguishment Credits utilizing net 
proceeds of Town income from the Tonopah Irrigation and Drainage 
District/CAGRD Long Term Storage Credit Agreements, not to exceed the 
amount received from the proceeds described above on an annual basis. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The net impact of ratifying the Purchase Agreement is positive as it will 
substantially facilitate a Council Strategic Plan objective while strengthening 
Florence’s water future by broadening and diversifying the Town’s water portfolio.  
The Town recently received our 201720/18 payment from CAGRD of $437,150.  
These funds would immediately be reinvested in future water by purchasing 
Management Area Extinguishment credits.  These credits would in turn, add to 
the Towns 100-year water supply and over time reduce dependence on CAGRD.   
 
Annual increase or decrease in the purchase price per Extinguishment Credit 
cannot exceed a maximum increase or decrease of 7%, compared to the prior 
year’s purchase price per Extinguishment Credit. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
Purchase Agreement 
Presentations 
 
 





















































GREENSTONE OVERVIEW



2 |

Greenstone Addresses a Critical Water Need

● Since 2010, Greenstone has 
invested in Arizona water assets.  
There are 3 primary reasons:
o Water scarcity is rapidly 

increasing in the Colorado 
River Basin 

o Population and Water 
Demand are fast growing

o Arizona has strong regulatory 
environment

● Greenstone owns high priority 
water assets that can meet the 
growing needs of users in central 
Arizona

Greenstone has a history of working with end users to find 
mutually beneficial solutions to water issues



3 |

Greenstone Owns a Portfolio of Arizona Water Assets

Southern Arizona

Greenstone’s water portfolio can address the supply needs of nearly any existing 
or future central Arizona water user

Farmland with Attached 
Water Rights

Groundwater Credits

Phoenix AMA
145,861 Consumable ECs

Pinal AMA
73,000 Consumable ECs
381.6 Perpetual ECs

Tucson AMA
40,909 Consumable ECs

Colorado River Farms
6,021 Gross Acres

20,921.9 Acre‐Feet of 
Perpetual Water Rights

Greene Farm
2,886 Gross Acres and up to

417,150 Pinal AMA Consumable ECs

Arizona’s future success is tethered to how effectively we 
continue to manage our water resources and develop new 

water supplies and infrastructure.
– Arizona Department of Water Resources Strategic Vision 2014

Co. River Farms
with Attached 
Water Rights

Prescott AMA
3,773.6 Consumable ECs



4 |

Arizona’s Regulatory Environment

● In 1988, the Arizona Legislature passed a legal mandate that all future development in central 
Arizona obtain a certificate of “Assured Water Supply” (AWS)
– AWS regulations mandated that development in central Arizona can not occur without a 

legally and physically available 100‐year water supply

● To accommodate development, Arizona’s legislature created the Central Arizona Groundwater 
Replenishment District (CAGRD) to provide AWS certificates for development in central Arizona
– Developers paid fees to CAGRD in return for the required AWS certificates.  CAGRD was 

then responsible for locating the needed 100‐year water supplies
– Florence is a member of CAGRD
– Extinguishment Credits (ECs) can be used by Florence to avoid paying replenishment fees 

to CAGRD

● CAGRD’s rates (a proxy for the cost of replenishment water) have increased at a rate in excess of 
10% per year since 2002.  CAGRD’s current replenishment rate in the Pinal AMA is $694/AF

Arizona’s 100‐year Assured Water Supply Law

CAGRD does not have water supplies sufficient to meet its existing or 
future water obligations



Greenstone Purchase 
Agreement

Florence Town Council
September 17,2018



Goal: Sustainable Water Future

• Town of Florence: Designated Water Provider (estimated)
• Total designation: 15,069 af annually
• Well Capacity: 11,098 af annually
• Annual Groundwater Allowance: 1,968 af
• Long Term Storage Credits: 27,024 af (15.6 years)
• Extinguishment Credits: 819 af

• CAGRD
• Annual Membership Fee: $55,355 (base)

• Replenishment, Admin Component, Infrastructure and Water Rights, Replenishment Reserve

• Water Insurance Policy
• Assured Water Supply Designation (100 year water supply)



Towns CAP Allotment

• Town’s CAP Allotment: 2,048 af annually

• 16 year agreement with PCWAA (MSIDD, CAIDD)

• 2017 Policy Change
• Groundwater Storage Agreement (Tonopah Irrigation District)

• 5 year initial term (2022)
• Long Term Storage Credit Sale Agreement (CAWCD)

• 5 year initial term (2022)

• 2018 Income: $437,150 (1,885 af)



Rate Comparison 2018/2019

• Pinal Active Management Area (CAGRD)
• Water & Replenishment Component: $204 
• Administrative Component $40
• Infrastructure & Water Rights Component: $353
• Replenishment Reserve Charge $97
• Total Assessment Rate $694 ($/AF) 

• CAP
• Excess Water Rate: $205 ($/AF) 

• Town/CAWCD Agreement: $232 ($/AF) 



Greenstone Purchase Agreement

• Terms
• 5 Year agreement
• Purchase Extinguishment Credits (Pinal AMA)
• Utilize Proceeds from the CAWCD Agreement
• Minimum of 3000 af / Maximum of 8,000 af (annually)
• Purchase Price: $90 af (2018)
• Maximum Annual (increase/decrease) in Rate of 7%
• Escrow Agent used for Transaction
• Acquired ECs will be used to offset Florence’s annual CAGRD replenishment obligation, 
minimizing future annual expense paid to CAGRD



Benefits to Florence

• Diverse Water Portfolio
• Long Term Storage Credits
• Annual Extinguishment Credits
• Incidental Recharge Credits
• Area Extinguishment Credits 
• On‐site Recharge (SWWTP)

• Progress Toward Designation w/o CAGRD

• Capacity to Grow (residential, commercial, industrial)

• Financial Benefit
• 1,885 af (LTSC) @ $232 af = $437,150
• $437,150 / $90 af = 4,857 af (Area Extinguishment Credits)



Questions



TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
9b.  

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town 
Manager/ Town Clerk 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject:  Resolution No. 1679-18 2018 Primary Election Results Meeting Date: September17, 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1679-18:  2018 Election 
Results 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality    Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     
 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 
 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1679-18:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE 
RESULTS OF THE PRIMARY ELECTION HELD ON AUGUST 28, 2018. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Town Council must canvas the election no later than 20 days after an election.    

The following table identifies the voter turnout for the last 14 years.  The area 
highlighted in yellow shows the primary election results every four years. Voter turnout 
in this race has gradually increased since 2010.    

ELECTION 
REGISTERED 

VOTERS 
VOTES CAST 

VOTER TURNOUT
PERCENTAGE 

PRIMARY 2002 2458 798 32.5 
PRIMARY 2004 3276 940 28.7 
PRIMARY 2006 3270 264 8.0 
PRIMARY 2008 
PRIMARY 2010 

3269 
3976

745 
1332

22.79 
33.43 

GENERAL 2010 3827 1639 43.83 
PRIMARY 2012 4122 2144 52.0 

GENERAL 2012 3948 1869 47.3 
  PRIMARY 2014  4176   1505   36.04 
  GENERAL 2014  4299   2436   56.66 
  PRIMARY 2016  4930   2037   41.32 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1679-18 2018 Primary Election Results Meeting Date: September17, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

  PRIMARY 2018  5820   2312   39.73 

As of August 1, 2018, Florence had 5,820 active registered voters and 624 inactive 
registered voters.  The number of ballots cast in the Primary Election was 2312.  The 
number of votes cast through mail ballot equaled 78% of the total ballots cast.    

Votes cast for the candidates for council were as follows: 

John Anderson 1,046 
Michelle Cordes 1,199 
Judy Hughes  1,134 
Gary J. Pranzo    888 
Vallarie Woolridge    851 

The rules determining the election results under the nonpartisan election procedure set 
forth in A.R.S. § 9-821.01, a candidate is declared elected to office in the primary if that 
candidate has a majority of all votes cast.  The method for determining whether a 
candidate has received a majority of the votes cast is calculated by adding the total 
number of votes cast for all candidates for an office; dividing that sum by the number of 
seats to be filled at the election and then dividing the result of that calculation by two 
and rounding the number to the highest whole number.  If more candidates receive a 
majority than there are offices to be filled, the candidates receiving the highest number 
of votes equal to the number of seats to be filled shall be declared elected.   If no one is 
elected, two candidates per seat move to the general election. 

The following Town Council candidate received the required amount of votes to be 
elected and are being issued a Certificate of Election: 

Michelle Cordes 
Judy Hughes  
John Anderson 

Candidates receiving the necessary number of votes (as previously described) to be 
elected to office in the primary election will be sworn into office in the same manner and 
within the same time period as if candidates were elected during the general election.  
In other words, even if no general election is necessary because all offices are filled at 
the primary, candidates are not sworn in until after the date the general election would 
have been held.  All successful candidates should be sworn in at the same time.  The 
Ceremonial meeting to seat the newly elected is scheduled for December 3, 2018 at 
6:00 p.m.  This is consistent with the December 5, 2014, and the December 1, 2016 
ceremonial meetings.  

Proposition 422  



Subject:  Resolution No. 1679-18 2018 Primary Election Results Meeting Date: September17, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

Proposition 422 on the Permanent Base Adjustment passed. 

Votes   Percentage 
Yes   1,179 60.34% 
No     775 39.66%   

A YES VOTE MEANS 

A Yes vote means that the Town has accepted the results of the August 28, 2018 
Election. 

A NO VOTE MEANS 

A no vote means that the Town of Florence must reconvene to canvas the vote before 
September 17, 2018. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact to adopting Resolution No. 1678-18 approving the results of 
the 2018 Primary Election. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1679-18 
Voting Results 



Resolution No. 1679 -18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE 
RESULTS OF THE PRIMARY ELECTION HELD ON AUGUST 28, 
2018.  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona, did hold a 

Primary Election on the 28th day of August 2018, for the three council members, 
and Proposition 422; and 
 

WHEREAS, the election returns have been presented to and canvassed 
by the Florence Town Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona, as follows: 

 
 THAT the number of registered voter for the Primary Election were 5820. 
 

THAT the total number of ballots cast at said Primary/General Election, as 
shown by the poll lists or reported by Pinal County, was 2312. 

 
THAT the number of ballots rejected was 3. 
 
THAT the number of mail ballots cast at the Primary Election were 1803, 

which were verified.   
 
THAT the votes cast for the candidates for councilmember were as 

follows: 
 

Names     Votes 
John Anderson    1,046 
Michelle Cordes    1,199 
Judy Hughes     1,134 
Gary J. Pranzo         888 
Vallarie Woolridge          851 
 

THAT it is hereby found, determined and declared of record, that the 
following candidate did receive more than one-half of the total number of valid 
votes cast and are hereby issued certificates of election: 

 
 Michelle Cordes 
 Judy Hughes 
 John Anderson 

 
 



THAT the following votes were cast in regard to Proposition 422 for the 
Town of Florence. 
  

   Votes   Percentage 
Yes     1,179          60.34%     

 No       775          39.66%   
 

THIS resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of September 2018. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________                _______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
   









TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:  Development Services 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Larry Harmer 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance  
Subject:  Resolution No. 1680-18: Final Plat for AMR Unit 35A  Meeting Date: September 17, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 

  Planning Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1680-18: Final Plat for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Unit 35A 

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

  Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance 

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1680-18: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 35A; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  

D. R. Horton, Inc. requests approval of this proposed subdivision located within the 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch (AMR) Planned Unit Development (PUD).  This area will be 
part of the Parkside portion of the AMR community. 

AMR Unit 35A includes 120 single-family residential lots on 29.65+/- acres.  The 
resultant density of this plat is 4.19 dwelling units per acre.  This plat expands the 
current and planned network of green belts and walking trails.  Should the Town Council 
approve this Final Plat, the resultant overall density for AMR based on Final Plat 
approvals will be 3.125 dwelling units per acre.  The PUD zoning permitted an overall 
single-family residential density of 3.5 dwelling units per acre for the overall AMR 
development. 

Neighborhood streets in this unit are designed and constructed with a 42-foot-wide 
right-of-way (ROW), which is consistent with the AMR PUD zoning.  The improvement 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1680-18: Final Plat for AMR Unit 35A  Meeting Date: September 17, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 

plans for this unit reflect modifications to the local street sidewalk standard to ensure 
ADA compliance.  
 
The Preliminary Plat for Unit 35A was approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on August 16, 2018.  The Town of Florence Public Works and Fire 
Department staff have reviewed the proposed subdivision and support the approval of 
this Final Plat.  Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS 
Coordinator and water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
That Council has rejected the final plat for any reason whatsoever, the reasons 
therefore shall be recorded in the minutes pursuant to Section 150.233 (B).  The 
applicant would be required to return to the final plat process with the new revisions. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
The Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 35A is approved and will be recorded with 
the office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
D. R. Horton, Inc. will construct the roadways within this subdivision to Town standards 
and will maintain the roadways until the end of the construction warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1680-18 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 35A 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1680-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL 
RANCH UNIT 35A; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN 
MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
 WHEREAS, the Final Plat Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 35A is consistent with 
the approved Anthem at Merrill Ranch Planned Unit Development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Preliminary Plat Extension for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 35A 
was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on August 16, 2018.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 

1. Approve the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 35A, subject to 
Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances. 
  

  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 17th day of September 2018. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 



FINAL PLAT
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 35A (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE

PCR No.                                          AREA (AC)                     USAGE

TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

BASIS OF BEARING

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2

GENERAL NOTES

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

141516171813

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

283026

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

14

25

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

AY

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

D.R. HORTON, INC.
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP, LLC

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

25

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

H
U

N
T

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

(2
0

0
6

-166147, P
C

R
)

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 S
T

A
T

E
 L

A
N

D
S

(N
O

T
 A

 P
A

R
T

)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 37
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 35A

A
N

T
H

E
M

A
T

M
E

R
R

ILL
R

A
N

C
H

U
N

IT
35B

(P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 39
(2007-047348, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 29
(2007-070682,

2008-068528, PCR)

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

(2008-105096, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 33
(PROPOSED)

JOHNSON UTILITIES
WATER RECLAMATION

PLANT
(2005-184048, PCR)

WELL #2 AND
TANK SITE

(2008-075151, PCR)

PRELI
M

IN
ARY



LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

0

SCALE: 1"=

50 100 200 300

100'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

DETAIL "A-A"

NW 1
4 SEC 25 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 25 T4S R8E

POB

POB

S
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

JOHNSON UTILITIES
WATER RECLAMATION

PLANT
(2005-184048, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 37
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 35B
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 33
(PROPOSED)

HUNT HIGHWAY (2006-166147, PCR)

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
W

A
Y

(200
6-1

718
07, P

C
R

)

SHEET 3

SHEET 4

SHEET
4

SHEET
5

S
H

E
E

T
5

N
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

ARIZONA STATE LANDS
(NOT A PART)

SHEET 3

SHEET 4

S
H

E
E

T
4

WELL #2 AND
TANK SITE

(2008-075151, PCR)

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

POB

PRELIM
IN

ARY



R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

MATCH SHEET 4

POB

ARIZONA STATE LANDS
(NOT A PART)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 37
(PROPOSED)JOHNSON UTILITIES

WATER RECLAMATION
PLANT

(2005-184048, PCR)

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

DETAIL "A-A"

NW 1
4 SEC 25 T4S R8E

SW 1
4 SEC 25 T4S R8E

POB

PRELIM
IN

ARY



R
E

G
IS

TERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ERT IFIC A TE NO

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d .... ....

... .
...

. ..
. .

.

ARIZ ONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

MATCH SHEET 3

M
A

TC
H

S
H

E
E

T
5

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 37
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 35B
(PROPOSED)

S
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

N
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

DETAIL "B-B"

DETAIL "C-C"

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

PRELIM
IN

ARY



R
E

G
IS

TERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ERT IFIC A TE NO

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d .... ....

... .
...

. ..
. .

.

ARIZ ONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

0

SCALE: 1"=

20 40 80 120

40'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

M
A

TC
H

S
H

E
E

T
4

POB (EXCEPTION)

WELL #2 AND
TANK SITE

(2008-075151, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 33
(PROPOSED)

JOHNSON UTILITIES
WATER RECLAMATION

PLANT
(2005-184048, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 35B
(PROPOSED)

HUNT HIGHWAY (2006-166147, PCR)

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
W

A
Y

(200
6-1

718
07, P

C
R

)

N
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

S
W

1/
4

S
E

C
25

T
4S

R
8E

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

PRELI
M

IN
ARY



R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B"

DETAIL "D" DETAIL "E"

DETAIL "C"

DETAIL "F"

DETAIL "G" DETAIL "H" DETAIL "I"

68

69

TRACT F

95

94

TRACT G

50

51

TRACT D

TRACT A

1

53

52

TRACT E
4 5

T
R

A
C

T
 J

6 7

T
R

A
C

T
 I

81

82

TRACT E

84

83

106

TRACT H
109

110

TRACT K

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

PRELI
M

IN
ARY



R
E

G
IS

T

ERED LA ND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

C
ER TIFIC A T E NO

.

D
a

t e
S i gne d ...... ..

....
...

. .
..

..

ARIZONA , U.S.A
.

Expires 09/ 30/ 2020

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

STATE OF ARIZONA
COUNTY OF PINAL }

RECORDER

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

DETAIL "J" DETAIL "K"

120

119
TRACT L

TRACT D

120

119

TRACT L

TRACT D

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST 1/2   OF SECTION 25,
T4S, R8E OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL CO., AZ

PRELIM
IN

ARY



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 9d. 

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2018  

DEPARTMENT:  Human Resource 

STAFF PRESENTER:   Scott Barber, HR Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Meeting Date: September 17, 2018  Subject: Resolution No. 1681-18 Revised FY18/19 
Employee Classification Plan 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1681-18: Revised FY2018-19 
Employee Classification Plan 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  Community Vitality  Economic Property   
 Leadership and Governance     Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure
 Statutory    None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1681-18: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF 
FLORENCE FY2018-2019 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

In 2016 and 2017, our Public Works Director and our Community Development Director 
left Town employment.  After analyzing the best approach to deal with those vacancies, 
the departments of Public Works and Community Development were merged to form 
the Development Services Department.  It has become clear that the workload for the 
Development Services Director position is too great, especially taking into consideration 
issues that continue to need attention in our utility divisions.  As a result, Brent 
Billingsley, Town Manager,  has decided to split the department back into two separate 
departments.  That move requires amendments to the current Employee Classification 
Plan.  In addition, an upcoming vacancy in the wastewater division is being addressed 
by a consolidation of the water and wastewater divisions back into a single Utilities 
Division, with one superintendent.  This is a return to a prior structure and is reflected in 
the revised classification plan.  And finally, the structure of the Finance Department has 
been under review for some time.  And sometimes opportunities present themselves 
that don’t particularly mesh with desired timelines.  Such is the case with a resignation 
we’ve received from the incumbent in our Accountant position.  After due deliberation, it 
is staff’s desire to reclassify the existing Accountant position to Budget Analyst and 
thereby expand the role of this position which is envisioned in what is hoped to be the 
departmental structure submitted for consideration in the FY19/20 budget process.   



Meeting Date: September 17, 2018  Subject: Resolution No. 1681-18 Revised FY18/19 
Employee Classification Plan 
Page 2 of 2 

FY2018-2O19 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN ADDITIONS: 

Public Works Director/Town Engineer Range 68 
Community Development Director Range 66 
Utility Superintendent Range 48 
Budget Analyst Range 47 

FY2018-2O19 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN DELETIONS: 

Town Engineer Water Superintendent 
Development Services Director Wastewater Superintendent 
Utilities Director Planning Manager 

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The revised FY18/19 Employee Classification Plan would not be amended and the 
associated organizational adjustments would not be implemented. 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The revised FY18/19 Employee Classification Plan would be adopted and the 
associated organizational adjustments would be implemented for the pay period which 
includes October 1, 2018.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact of this recommendation to the General Fund is approximately $27,000 
additional salary dollars in the (new) Community Development Department, which is the 
reclassification of the Planning Manager plus 50% of an Administrative Assistant 
compensation for the employee who will remain in Community Development and 
therefore must be paid fully by that General Fund departmental budget.  The Finance 
Department recommendation is expected to have a net-negative impact due to the 
vacancy factor and where in the pay range individuals have been hired versus the 
budgeted amount.  Outside of the General Fund, the recommendation will result in a net 
salary savings to Street Fund (which is being charged 50% of an Administrative 
Assistant compensation), and the savings in the Water and Wastewater Funds achieved 
through consolidation of the superintendent positions. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1681-18 
Revised Town of Florence FY2018-2019 Classification Plan 



RESOLUTION NO 1681-18 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2018-
2019 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN.   

WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, that the Town Manager desires to make certain changes in 
the Town organizational structure; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the previously approved Town of Florence 
FY2018-19 Employee Classification Plan to enable those planned changes.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, that the Town of Florence hereby adopts the recommended 
revised Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Employee Classification Plan. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council this 17th day of September 2018. 

________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 4 

Town of Florence 
FY 2018-19 Classification Plan – Revised 9/17/18 

(Pay Range Order) 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/
Unclassified

Town Manager Contract 

Town Attorney Contract 

Town Magistrate Contract 

Deputy Town Manager 73 $93,785 $121,799 $149,813 E UC 

Police Chief 69 $84,964 $110,343 $135,722 E UC 

Fire Chief 68 $82,892 $107,652 $132,412 E UC 
Public Works Director/Town 
Engineer 

 
E UC 

Finance Director 67 $80,870 $105,027 $129,183 E UC 

Community Development 
Director 

66 $78,898 $102,465 $126,032 E UC 

Community Services Director 64 $75,097 $97,528 $119,959 E UC 
Human Resource Director E UC

Town Clerk 60 $68,033 $88,355 $108,676 E UC 

Assistant Town Manager 59 $66,375 $86,201 $106,027 E UC 
Cmns & Intergovernmental 
Relations Manager 

 E UC

Deputy Public Works Director E UC
Information Technology Mgr E UC
Police Lieutenant E C 

Senior Civil Engineer 57 $63,176 $82,047 $100,918 E UC 

Fire Battalion Chief 55 $61,304 $78,094 $94,884 E C 

Accounting Manager 51 $55,538 $70,749 $85,960 E C 
Senior Planner E C
Police Support Services Mgr E C 

Building Official 50 $54,183 $69,023 $83,863 E C 

GIS Coordinator E C 

Library Manager E C 

Police Sergeant NE C 

Public Works Superintendent E C 

Assistant to the Town Manager 49 $52,862 $67,340 $81,818 E C 

Fire Captain 48 $51,527 $65,697 $79,822 NE C 

Public Works Project Manager E C 

Utility Superintendent  E C 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/ 
Unclassified

Budget Analyst 47 $50,315 $64,095 $77,875 E UC 

Grants Coordinator       

Management Analyst       

Associate Engineer 46 $49,088 $62,532 $75,976 NE C 

Parks Maintenance Supt. 45 $47,890 $61,006 $74,122 NE C 

Recreation Superintendent     E C 

Planner 44 $46,722 $59,518 $72,314 NE C 

Court Administrator 43 $45,583 $58,067 $70,551 E UC 

Senior Building Inspector     NE C 

Fire Engineer 42 $44,471 $56,651 $68,831 NE C 

Police Officer     NE C 
Public Safety Communications 
Supervisor 

    NE C 

Accountant 40 $42,328 $53,921 $65,515 NE C 

Facilities Manager     NE C 

Police Recruit     NE C 

Finance Project Analyst 39 $41,296 $52,606 $63,916 NE C 

Crime Analyst     NE C* 

Firefighter 38 $40,289 $51,323 $62,357 NE C 

Fleet Services Supervisor     NE C 

Information Technology Tech.     NE C 

Maintenance Foreman     NE C 

Deputy Town Clerk 37 $39,305 $50,070 $60,835 NE C 

Human Resource Coordinator     NE C 

Building Inspector 36 $38,346 $48,849 $59,352 NE C 

Field Foreman     NE C 

Parks Maintenance Foreman     NE C 

Engineering Technician 35 $38,841 $47,658 $56,475 NE C 

Senior Treatment Plant Opr     NE C 

Public Safety Dispatcher – Lead 34 $37,893 $46,496 $55,098 NE C 
Recreation Coordinator     NE C 

Librarian 33 $36,970 $45,362 $53,754 NE C 

Payroll Specialist     NE C 

Code Compliance Officer 32 $36,068 $44,255 $52,442 NE C 

Maintenance Worker III     NE C 

Mechanic     NE C 

Police Evidence Technician     NE C 

Sanitation Worker III     NE C 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Position Classification 
Pay 

Range
Minimum Midpoint Maximum FLSA 

Classified/ 
Unclassified

Engineering Technician Assistant 30 $34,330 $42,123 $49,916 NE C 

Public Safety Dispatcher     NE C* 

Senior Court Clerk     NE C 

Utility Billing Supervisor     NE C 

Administrative Assistant 29 $33,492 $41,095 $48,698 NE C 

Permit Specialist     NE C 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Opr     NE C 

Water Plant Operator     NE C 

Accounting Technician 28 $32,676 $40,093 $47,510 NE C 

Assessment Specialist     NE C 

Facilities Maintenance Specialist     NE C 

Utility Services Representative     NE C 

Utility Systems Operator 27 $31,880 $39,116 $46,352 NE C 
Maintenance Worker II 26 $31,101 $38,161 $45,221 NE C 

Sanitation Worker II     NE C 

Recreation Programmer 25 $30,343 $37,231 $44,119 NE C 

Court Clerk 24 $29,603 $36,323 $43,043 NE C 

Police Records Clerk     NE C* 

Utility Services Operator     NE C 

Maintenance Worker I 22 $29,386 $34,572 $39,758 NE C* 

Sanitation Worker I     NE C 

Customer Service Representative 21 $28,670 $33,729 $38,788 NE C 

Library Assistant     NE C 

Office Assistant     NE C* 

Mechanic Assistant 19 $27,288 $32,104 $36,920 NE C 

Custodian 16 $25,340 $29,812 $34,284 NE C 

Library Aide 15 $24,434 $28,746 $33,058 NE C* 
*All part-time positions in these classifications are unclassified



Page 4 of 4 
 

Guidelines for Temporary Positions (hourly): 
 

Position Classification Minimum Maximum

Fitness Trainer $12.7990 $17.7587 

Pool Manager $12.1899 $16.4923 

Heat Lifeguard $10.5000* $13.8730 

Recreation Leader III   

Lifeguard II $10.5000* $11.9629 

Recreation Leader II   

Lifeguard I $10.5000* $10.8375 

Recreation Leader I   

Student Trainee   

 
*will be $11.00 on 1/1/19 per state law 
 
 
 
Part-Time Fire Department Positions (hourly): 
 

Position Classification Minimum Maximum

Part-Time Firefighter $13.25 $20.51 

Part-Time Fire Engineer $14.63 $22.64 

 


	September 17, 2018 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Pinal Co Strategic Transportation Safety Plan
	6b. Census Proclamation

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Planning and Zoning Commission Appoinments
	7b. August 6, 2018 Council MInutes
	7b. August 20, 2018  Council Minutes

	7c i. July 31, 2018 HDAC Minutes
	7c ii. August 2, 2018 PZ and PR Board Minutes
	7c iii. June 21, 2018 Planning and Zoning Minutes
	7c iii. July 19, 2018 Planning and Zoning Minutes



	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Ordinance No. 0270-99

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a. Greenstone Water Credits LLC
	9b. Resolution No. 1679-18 Canvass of Election
	9c. Resolution No. 1680-18 Final Plat AMR Unit 35A
	9d. Resolution No. 1681-18 Revised FY18-19 Employee Clsssification Plan




